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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

Lori A. Shibiienc 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commiuioner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext 4501

Fax:603-271.4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Pairicia M. Tiiley www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

November 2, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with Foundation for Healthy Communities (VC#154533).
Concord, NH, to support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals by continuing
program improvement activities, by exercising a renewal option, by increasing the price
limitation by $278,176 from $5,384,642 to $5,662,818 and by extending the completion date from
May 31, 2023 to May 31, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal
Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on May 19, 2021, Item #23
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on Decembers, 2021, item #12.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget
Office, if needed and justified.

See attached Tiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue to support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire
Small Rural Hospitals with Implementing activities, chosen by the hospitals as a group from the
menu of grant activities, provided annually by the Small Rural Hospital Improvement Program
Grant. The Contractor will continue to support existing programs and create new programs to
address chronic disease prevention as well as Critical Access Hospital COVID-19 testing and
mitigations strategies.

The Contractor will receive additional funding to support Critical Access Hospital
improvement work as a result of additional federal funding allocations for New Hampshire. The
Contractor will continue to work with the Small Rural Hospitals and support coordinated care
efforts in high need areas. The Contractor will continue to provide community benefit profiles for
each Small Rural Hospital so the hospitals can maximize the impact of their investments in the
communities they serve. Additionally, the Contractor will continue to conduct at least one but not
more than two (2) Medicare Bootcamp billing and coding trainings each grant year to help improve
the revenue streams of New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals to ensure maximal reimbursement
for services provided.

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



OocuSign Envelope ID: 0CAB1052-O8FC-4A24.A107-08880190DA87

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councrl
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The Department will monitor contracted services by reviewing the reports from the
Contractor of work completed at each New Hampshire Small Rural Hospital and through monthly
monitoring meetings.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the thirteen (13) New
Hampshire Small Rural Hospital locations will have less capacity to handle the continuous
changes in Medicare billing and coding reimbursement, resulting in lost revenue and greater
financial risk. Additionally, the Small Rural Hospitals will not receive the training needed to
support high needs areas, leading to higher readmissions.

Area served: Rural areas served by New Hampshire's Small Rural Hospitals.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.426 FAIN # NU58DP006515;
Assistance Listing Number # 93.945 FAIN # NU58DP006448; Assistance Listing Numt>er #
93.391 FAIN # NH750T000031. Assistance Listing Number # 93.301 FAIN # H3HRH00028.
Assistance Listing Number # 93.155 FAIN # H3LRH42248.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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05-95-090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH
SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc

90017003

(heart)
$150,000 $0 $150,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
90017002 $250,000 $0 $250,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003

(heart)

$25,000 ($5,000) $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017002

(diabetes)

$25,000 ($25,000) $0

Subtotal $450,000 ($30,000) $420,000

05-95-90-902010-70460000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND
HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017717

(arthritis)

$80,000 $0 $80,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017717

(arthritis)

$80,000 ($80,000) $0

Subtotal $160,000 ($80,000) $80,000

05-95-90-901010-24970000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE, SHIP ARP COVID MITIGATION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised -

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076020

$3,066,713 $0 $3,066,713

Subtotal $3,066,713 $0 $3,066,713
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05-95 -90-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH
COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90577150

$1,420,000 $0 $1,420,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90577150

$0 $200,000 .. $200,000

2024 i102-500731!
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90577150

$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $1,420,000 $200,000 $1,620,000

05-95 -9

HUMAN
PFRFftR

0-901010-22190000 HEALTH

SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUB
MANrP 5^MAI 1 HnftPITAI

AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
Lie HEALTH. BUREAU OF POLICY AND
MPPn\/FMFNT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$9,667 $0 $9,667

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$171,932 $0 $171,932

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$106,330 $43,423 $149,753

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$144,753 $144,753

Subtotal $287,929 $188,176 $476,105

TOTAL $5,384,642 $278,176 $5,662,818



State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting project Is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Foundation for Healthy Communities ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 19, 2021, (Item #23), as amended on December 8, 2021, (Item #12), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement, Section 1.2, subsection 3.3., the Contract may be amended upon witten agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

May 31, 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,662,818

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit C - Amendment #1, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall t}e on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line Items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-8, Amendment #2, Small Hospital
Improvement SFY 2024 Budget.

5. Modify Exhibit C - Amendment #1, Payment Terms, Section 8, to read:

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services - Amendment
#1, In compliance with funding requirements.

6. Modify Exhibit C - Amendment #1, Payment Terms, Section 9, to read:

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in
part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit B, Scope of Services
- Amendment #1 .Modify Exhibit C-3, Amendment #1 Budget by deleting it In its entirety.

7. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2, Combined Chronic Disease SFY 2023 Budget, which Is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-5. Amendment #2, PH COVID-19 Health Disparities SFY 2023 Budget, which is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-6. Amendment #2, Small Hospital Improvement SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-7, Amendment #2, Small Hospital Improvement SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-8, Amendment #2, Small Hospital Improvement SFY 2024 Budget, which Is attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

Foundation for Healthy Communities A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials"

RFA.2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: OCAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-D888C190DAB7

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/14/2022

Date

C—OocuSlgnMi by;
-MeCQMCMgCMCB

Name:

Title: Director,

Foundation for Healthy Communities

11/11/2022

Date

■DocuSlgnad by:

Name:
jjtle; Executive Director

Foundation for Healthy Communities

RFA-2021-DPHS-Oe-SMALL-d-A02

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

COoeuSlfln«d by;
Date Name:

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Foundation for Healthy Communities A-S-1.2

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2,

Combined Chronic Disease

SPY 2023 Budget

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01 •A02

M«w Oepsrlnwil of HoaJlh and Humin Sirvfcos

Com^M cam fiwfpvf fcm for mcA Imgo* porfotf.

Contractor NoiTio: Pdundallon hfHaaHnyCommunHas

BuOgol RoqtMst for Srriaf Auraf MoapMf Populattofl fMin «no HotwoHng Piqlaci fComfinaO CnnvK Onaaaa)

Budgal Period Upon Onaamor and Couned AffmiV Way May 31, 3073

htdtroei Coal Rata (H appUcaMal O.OOH

tJ

Una ham Program Coat •Ftrrxiad by 0HH9

1. SalarvtWaoa*

U

i. Fnrcn narwfita

W

to

i. Equlprnant
Indiract COM rata cannolM apcflad to aquipmoM coat* par 2 CFR 200,1 and
Anmwxlh rv in ? CFB 700.

to

&.(a) Suppiaa - Educationif
to

S.(n) Suppf'Oa-LaO
to

$.(c) SuppHaa • Wiatmacy
to

5.(d) Suppliaa • Madlcal
to

S.(a) Sup|d>ea OfTica
to

S. Traval

to

7. SofNaOra

to

R (a) ntnm - MarvatlntV Comrmjntealloiw

to

A. fhl Otnai - Fducallon and TraWno

to

to

Otntr frdaaia inacA'l

to

Ofiof fafaaaa aoandrl

to

to

g. ftubradolanl Cantraeti

tTo.mo

Total DIract Coau t20.030

Toullndlraci Coata to

TOTAL t20.000

Pig* 1

Contractor Inltials^

11/11/2022
Date
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Exhibit C-5, Amendment #2,

PH C0VID19 Health Disparities
SPY 2023 Budget

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02

Hwnpshlra Depertmeol of Hoollti and Human Safvlcaa

CotnpMt ana tud^M fann Hr aacfi Oudgai panod.

Contractor Nwna: foundtkyi ht HnUty Cenmtnlms

SudOM Raouatt fan Snof Rural Hotfdar FwcMCbrt HaMA and HoupoOng ftqlaO (PH ComO t9Haa(nOiiear«M;

Sudaat Rarlod Upon Oovamor atd Counef Approval (Dreogn Aiay 3 f, 2023

Indliael Coat Raia {II applkaMa) OAXM

Unalloin

U

Program Coat • Ftatdod tiy 0HH9

1. Salarvawooet

SO

2. PflnoaBanafiB

SO

SO

A, EQiApmanl

Indiraei Mai rata eannel M appflad M aqupmanl caau par 2 CFR 200.1 and Appandir IV to 2CFR
2ea

so

S.|a) Suppliaa • EducaLomi

so

S.|b) Supctaa-Lao

so

S.(c) Supd-at • Pnarmacy

$0

S.|d) Supdaa-MatScal
to

S.|a) Supd<aaOniea
so

so

7  Sofhvara

so

IL (a) Omar • MartMinnl ConmunlcaUflm

so

IL <h» Omnt • Fdiicstion and Traininn so

so

nmnr Mmw tnacdvl so

Ol/w Idaata aoarArl so

so

t. .%inradni<ml Cnnlraai

$200,000

Total DIract Coata S200.000

Total Indlrael Caat* so

TOTAL STM.MO

Contractor Initials.

—OS

Pao*l Date

11/11/2022
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Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2,

Small Hospital Improvement
SPY 2023 Budget

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02

H*m Hanwihln Ovpulminl of HMhlt ind Human Smkn

CempWt on* IvdgK knn for ncA pangtf,

Cftfttraetor Nwn«: PoundMOn fa CornnunUn

OudgM R*«uMI fot Snuf RtM»l HMp*« HiioiMien H»Ml> tnn Hry.vjnnog Prtftel (Smaf HaaoMf trvnkttmn)

DwdBM Pirtod Upeiy Gevtmer md Couned Aeentnt tfvmjgP Ami 30. 3023

•ndlricl Coil Ran (11 ippHeibMI 0,00%

UndiMm Program Coil • Fundod by OHH$

$45,000

7  FrinonftnnnlH*
$e,soo

$0

*. Eotipmon
Indlract con micannol Boapcdid lo lou-pminl coWi par 2 CFR 200.1 md

Aoonnrtti IV lo 7 CFR 200.

$0

S.(a) Supi^'d* * EOucationil

S.(b) SuppI'di-Lab

$0

S-IO Suppdoi • Phannaey
$0

Mb) Supcl-M - MoOcH
$0

b.(«) SueploiOiiko
$250

R  TmvKl

$3,500

7. Sotimri

$1,100

R inOthiM .Mnfl'illno/ft«nmM(dnat>nn«

$1,000

a. (bl OINH • Fducalion and TraMno

$4,500

R (f1 rRNM . ONit (imafv bitowl

$500

$04,220

$2,000

$150

.%iOicnM>yts
$500

Audi
$1,000

9. SuOmdnlinl Conlricn

$0

Total Dhoel Ceiti $130,220

T otal Indkad Coiti $19,533

TOTAL $149,753

Pig* 1

Contractor Initials

—DS

11/11/2022
Date
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Exhibit C-7,Amendment #2

Small Hospital Improvement
SPY 2023 Budget

RFA.2021 •DPHS-06-SMALL-01 •A02

Hmt Hampihir* Oepartmenl of Health and Human Sorvkot
Complete one Owdpef /orm /or eeeft OuO^of pertoO.

Coonctor Nairn: Founamion hr H9lll>r Cernnm-t

BudeM ftaquaar for Smal An HoMfital BepUaUan Uaaafi and HartpefWie Ae/Per (&na< Noapaa' anpie»}
Budeat Paiiod <Aaia f. ̂ 23 lo Juna X, 3033

Indlraat Coal Aaia (H tpplkablal O.OOH

Una Kam , Piogiaaii C*al • Fundad by 0HH9

I. 3alefv«W8oat

u.ooo

?  frinnaflanafltt

$735

4. Epulpmant

Indiracl coal rata cannol bo appliad loaquipmani coala par 2 CPR 200.1 and Appandia IV to 2
CFR200.

S.|a) SupdoO'Edueatienal

5.(0) Suoc''a> - l-ao

S.(c) Suppliat - Pnarmacy

S.|d) Supct'd* • MaMi

S.(a) Supplias Olfica
>42

7  fioftwara

$133

IL ra1 Ofw - MnranHnn/ Cnmmunlcadnm

t. rel Otnai • Oinar laoecdv balowl

$250

rafcanomi k^r^lxinn M

$75

Pocuoa

$12

SuPaenpUcna

AdiM

Total DIraet Coala U.247

Total Indlraat Coala $937

TOTAL $7,154

Contractor Initials.

DS

11/11/2022
Page 1 Date
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Exhibit C-8,Amendment #2

Small Hospital Improvement
SPY 2024 Budget

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02

Nmr Hamotliira OvpanmMI sC HMlth Md Human SatvteM

CaaipHta otm bud$^t ttrm 'or parHd.

Centraeter Nam*: PourxMion Av HaaXTiy ConvnunUas

Sudgat RaquMlfer Sma# Hura# Haapda# flopUaian >*#*« and HcMpoeng Aqieel fSmed Meepda# Imerov)
Bwdaal Parted Myt. m) Areugn U*r 31.3024

Indlrael Catt Rala (H applaaMa) 0,00%

Unanam Program Coat > f undad try OteiS

1. »ttefv«W8oa«

$95,000

99.040

a. CanaiJtaMi

4. Eddamam

Irteracl coal rala carvrol ba apddd to aquipmani coali par 3 CPR 300.1 and Appandfr rv to 3
OFRXte

l|a) Supclias - EducatonM

s.(0) Supd'M-ue

S.|c| Suppliat - Pnarmacy

S.(d) Suppliat • Madicid

9.(4) Supplias Of'ka
9499

6. Travel

93.909

91.467

a. (al OAar • Markatlitel CenvnunicalteH

S1.000

a. (Bl Omar • Edueallon arm Traininn

94.900

Oecuoanrv

93.750

Talanftivia AeAxWKf C*i

9925

Potlaa*

9138

.^ilur/inUaM

9900

Aud*
91.000

9. Subradniaril Conlracn

940.447

Tolal DIraci Coita 9119.925

Talal irxtiracl Coats 917.044

TOTAL 9117.999

OS

P(0* I

Contractor initials

11/11/2022
Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY

COMMUNITIES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 28,

1968. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63943

Certificate Number: 0005895936

3

<5^

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I iih day of November A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secreiaiy of Stale
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Foundation for
Healthy Communities

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Stephen Ahnen. of the FoundatioD for Healthy Communities, do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected SecretaryyTreasurer of the Foundation for Healthy Communities:

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted by action of unanimous consent

of the Board of Directors of the Fotmdation Healthy Cnmmunities duly adopted on October

18. 2021:

RESOLVED: That this corporation, the Foundation for Healthy Communities, enters into any and all
contracts, amendments, renewals, revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshire,
acting through its Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director or the Vice President of Quality Improvement or the
Secretary / Treasurer for the Foundation for Healthy Communities are hereby authorized on behalf of
this corporation to enter into said contracts with the State, and to execute any and all documents,
agreements, and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she
may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. Peter Ames is the duly appointed Executive Director
and Kristine Hering is the duly appointed Vice President of Quality Improvement and Stephen Ahnen
is the duly appointed Secretary/Treasurer of the corporation.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in fiill force
and effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is

attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate
of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely
on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent
that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary/Treasurer of the

Fotmdation for Healthy Communities this 7'*' dav of November 2022.

BOARD MEMBER



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0CAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-O888C190DAB7

NEWHAMP-02

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

TFAGERSON

DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

6/7/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such cndorsement{s).

PRODUCER License#1780862
HUB International New England
275 US Route 1
Cumberland Foreslde, ME 04110

gjjj^ACT Gabe Reissman
PHONE FAX
(A/C. No. Ext): (A/C, No);

Af^^ss- gabe.reissman@hubinternational.com

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICm

INSURER A: Hartford Casualtv Insurance Comoanv 29424

INSURED Hampshire Hospital Assoc.
The Foundation for Healthy Communities
Attn: Linda Levesque
125 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

INSURERS ;Twin Citv Fire Insurance Comoanv 29459

INSURER 0:

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E ;

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
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Foundation for Healthy Communities is considered a Named insured for the above mentioned policies.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301
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SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
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ACORD 25(2016/03) <S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0CAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-D888C190DAB7

Foundation for
Healthy Communities

\1D7-D888C

B

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Mission Statement

The mission of the Foundation for Healthy

Communities is to build healthier communities

for all by leading partnerships, fostering

collaboration, and creating innovative solutions

to advance health and health care.
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Foundation as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be Independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibiiities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U;S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

Maine • New Hampshire • Mossachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities
Page 2

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Govemment
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and" the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 18,
2022 on our consideration of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment
Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

L.£-C^

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 18, 2022
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from affiliate

Prepaid expenses

$ 518,667
194,633
141,135
10.650

$ 345,201
547,234
115,780
10.334

Total current assets 865.085 1.018.549

Investments 1.082.677 962.689

Property and equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Equipment and furniture

1,118
147.427

1,118
147.427

Less accumulated depreciation
148,545
148.545

148,545
148.145

Property and equipment, net - 400

Total assets $1,947,762 $1,981,638

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related amounts
Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

$  22,995
109,901
98,369
9.110

$  21,119
91,070
97,731
6.949

Total current liabilities and total liabilities 240.375 216.869

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Operating
Internally designated

1,137,512

379.316

923,080
489.296

Total without donor restrictions 1,516,828 1,412,376

With donor restrictions 190.559 352.393

Total net assets 1.707.387 1.764.769

Total liabilities and net assets $1,947,762 $1,981,638

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes In Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Interest and dividend income

Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments

Gifts and donations

Grant support
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from internally
designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits
Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Depreciation

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations and total
change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internally
Operating Designated

$ 483,121 $
1,235,129

123,729

16,943

155,498
5

408,812

246.314

1,589,529
120,006
715,818

29,366

400

2.455.119

214,432

923,080

136,334

(246.3141

Total

$ 483,121
1,235,129

123,729

16,943

155,498
5

545,146

2.669.551 (109.9801 2.559.571

1,589,529
120,006
715,818

29,366
400

2^55,119

{109,980) 104,452

489.296 1.412.376

With Donor

Restrictions Total

$ 483,121
1,235,129

123,729

16,943

155,498
5

383,312383,312

(545,146)

(161.8341 2.397.737

1,589,529
120,006
715,818

29,366
400

2.455.119

(161,834) (57,382)

352.393 1.764.769

$1.137.512 S 379.316 $1.516.828 $ 190.559 $1.707.387

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Interest and dividend income

Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments

Gifts and donations

Grant support
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from internally
designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits
Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Depreciation
Recovery of bad debts

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations and total
change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internally
Operatino Desionated

$ 463,120 S
3,396,795

22,033

18,519

93,504
196

Total

338,026

286.413

1.462,230
124,109

2,865,199

33,130

2,747
(400)

4.487.015

131,591

791.489

237,213

(286.413)

With Donor

Restrictions

$ 463,120 $
3,396,795

22,033
18.519

93,504
196

575,239

4.618.606 (49.200) 4.569.406

1,462,230
124,109

2,865,199

33,130
2,747

(400)

4.487.015

Total

$ 463,120
3,396,795

22,033

18,519

93,504
196

567,282567,282

(575,239)

(7.957) 4.561.449

1,462,230
124,109

2,865,199

33,130
2,747

(400)

4.487.015

(49,200) 82,391 (7,957) 74,434

538.496 1.329.985 360.350 1.690.335

$ 923.080 $ 489.296 $1.412.376 S 352.393 $1.764.769

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  (57,382) $ 74,434
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation 400 2,747
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments (155,498) (93,504)
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 352,601 (189,782)
Prepaid expenses (316) (724)
Due from affiliate (25,355) (3,250)
Accounts payable 1,876 (121,842)
Accrued payroll and related amounts 18,831 44,885
Due to affiliates 638 36,044
Deferred revenue 2.161 f1.064)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 137.956 (252.056)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments • (1,890)
Proceeds from sale of investments 35.510 5.255

Net cash provided by Investing activities 35.510 3.365

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 173,466 (248,691)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 345.201 593.892

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 518,667 $ 345,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Organization

Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) was organized to conduct various activities relating
to healthcare delivery process improvement, health policy, and the creation of healthy communities.
The Foundation is controlled by New Hampshire Hospital Association (Association) whose purpose is
to assist its members in improving the health status of the people receiving healthcare in New
Hampshire.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions; Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Foundation. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Foundation's management
and the Board of Trustees.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. At
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation did not have any funds to be maintained in
perpetuity.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

For purposes of reporting in the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

From time-to-time, the Foundation's total cash deposits exceed the federally insured limit. The
Foundation has not incurred any losses and does not expect any in the future.

-7-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual
accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts
receivable. Management believes all accounts receivable are collectible. Credit Is extended without
collateral.

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the statements of financial position. Interest and dividends
and realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets from
operations.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported In the
statements of financial position.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful lives of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line
method.

Employee Fringe Benefits

The Foundation has an "earned time" plan under which each employee earns paid leave for each
period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacation or illnesses. Hours earned but
not used are vested with the employee and may not exceed 30 days at year-end. The Foundation
accrues a liability for such paid leave as it is earned.

Grants and Contributions

Grants awarded and contributions received in advance of expenditures are reported as support
with donor restrictions if they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the grants or
contributions. When a grant or contribution restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and
changes In net assets as net assets released from restrictions. If there are unused grant funds at
the time the grant restrictions expire, management seeks authorization from the grantor to retain
the unused grant funds to be used for other unspecified projects. If the Foundation receives
authorization from the grantor, then the Board of Trustees or management internally designates
the use of those funds for future projects. These amounts are released from net assets with donor
restrictions to internally designated net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

-8-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Grant funds conditional upon submission of documentation of qualifying expenditures or matching
requirements are deemed to be earned and reported as revenues when the Foundation has met
the grant conditions.

The amount of such funds the Foundation will ultimately receive depends on the actual scope of
each program, as well as the availability of funds. The ultimate disposition of grant funds is subject
to audit by the awarding agencies.

Grant funds awarded for which restrictions have been met in the year of award are reported in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets in program services revenues and expenses.

Contributions of long-lived assets are reported as support for net assets without donor restrictions
unless donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long these long-lived assets must be maintained, the
Foundation reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501 (a) of the Code.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, the
Foundation has considered transactions or events occurring through April 18, 2022, which was the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Avallabllitv and Liouiditv of Financial Assets

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize the investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Foundation considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities and general and
administration, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Foundation operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

As of December 31, 2021, the Foundation has working capital of $624,710 and average days
(based on normal expenditures) cash on hand of 210, which includes cash and cash equivalents
and investments, less donor restricted funds.

-9-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

The following financial assets could readily be available within one year of the statements of
financial position date to meet general expenditure at December 31;

2021 2020

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 618,667 $ 345,201
Accounts receivable, net 194,633 547,234
Due from affiliate 141,135 115,780

Investments 1,082,677 962,689
Internally designated funds (379,316) (489,296)
Donor restricted funds (190.5591 (352.393)

Financial assets available at year end for current use
to meet general expenditures $ 1.367.237 $ 1.129.215

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, internally designated net assets represent unused grant funds to
be used for other unspecified projects by management over the next 12 months. The internally
designated net assets are included in cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable, net.

3. Investments and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic
820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value
in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset
or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.
FASB ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.

The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

-10-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

The Foundation's investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are considered
Level 1.

The composition of investments as of December 31 is set forth in the following table. Investments
are stated at fair value.

2021 2020

Marketable equity securities $ 204,492 $ 192,065
Mutual funds 878.185 77o!624

$ 1.082.677 $ 962.689

4. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions of $190,559 and $352,393 consisted of specific grant programs
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. respectively. The grant programs relate to improvements to
access and the delivery of healthcare services.

5. Conditional Promise to Give

During 2016, the Foundation was awarded a grant from the State of New Hampshire in an amount
not to exceed $1,800,000 to facilitate the expansion of New Hampshire's addiction identification
and overdose prevention activities. Subsequent to the original award, the State of New Hampshire
amended the award amount increasing the grant to an amount not to exceed $4,575,824. Receipt
of the grant and recognition of the related revenue was conditional upon incurring qualifying
expenditures. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Foundation recognized program and
grant support related to this award in the amount of $1,104,493. As of December 31, 2020, the
Foundation had received and recognized the full award. No additional awards occurred durinq
2021.

6. Related Party Transactions

The Foundation leases space from the Association on a monthly basis. Rental expense under this
lease for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $41,184 and $41,255, respectively.

The Association provides various accounting, public relation and janitorial services to the
Foundation. The amount expensed for these services in 2021 and 2020 was $185,431 and
$173,468, respectively. In addition, the Association bills the Foundation for its allocation of shared
costs. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation owed the Association $98,369 and
$97,731, respectively, for services and products provided by the Association.

The Association owed the Foundation $141,135 and $115,780 as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively, for support allocated to the Foundation. For the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, the Foundation received support from the Association in the amount of $483,121
and $463,120, respectively.

-11-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

7. Retirement Plan

The Foundation participates in the Association's 401{k) profit-sharing plan, which covers
substantially all employees and allows for employee contributions of up to the maximum allowed
under Internal Revenue Service regulations. Employer contributions are discretionary and are
determined annually by the Foundation. Retirement plan expense for 2021 and 2020 was $55,724
and $48,803, respectively.

8. Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and related taxes,
allocated based on the estimated time utilized on programs, and insurance and depreciation,
allocated based on the estimated square footage of the total building.

Expenses by function and natural classification are as follows:

2021 2020

Program services
Salaries and related taxes $ 1,337,571 $ 1,256,722
Office supplies and other 508,376 548,910
Occupancy 38,449 37,500
Subrecipients - 2,068,198
Subcontractors 251,845 298,400
Seminars, meetings and workshops 35,505 36,700
Insurance 3,346 3,138
Depreciation 3M 2.198

Total program services 2.175.412 4.251.766

General and administrative

Salaries and related taxes 251,958 205,508
Office supplies and other 3,689 3,194
Occupancy 21,749 24,306
Recovery of bad debts ■ (400)
Insurance 2,231 2,092
Depreciation 80 549

Total general and administrative 279.707 235.249

$2.455.119 $4.487.015

-12-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Foundation's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in Internal control such that there Is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Foundation's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Maine • New Hampshire • Mossochusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Foundation's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's Internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 18, 2022

.14-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF

FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited Foundation for Healthy Communities' (Foundation) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of Management and Budget
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for
the year ended December 31, 2021. The Foundation's major federal program is identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report.

We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Foundation's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Foundation's federal programs.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizono

berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Foundation's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute-assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Foundation's compliance with the requirements
of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a

test basis, evidence regarding the Foundation's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Foundation's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that Is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

-16-
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of

. the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the Foundation as of and for the year ended December
31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2022, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance, and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 18, 2022

-17-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 0CAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-O888C190DAB7

FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federal Program

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Pass-through programs:

State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Public
Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP)
Aligned Cooperative Agreements

Federal

AL

Number

93.074

Small Rural Hospital Improvement Grant Program 93.301

State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program 93.241

National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness
Program 93.889

Cooperative Agreement to Support Navigators in
Federally-facilitated and State Partnership
Marketplaces 93.332

Total expenditures of federal awards

Pass-Through
Entity

Identifying
Number

Federal

Expenditures

05-95-90-

902510-2239 $ 745,459

05-95-90-

901010-2219

05-95-90-

902010-2218

6U3REP20064

9-01-00

123,772

67,797

2,000

NAVACA21040

0-01-00 16.288

S  955.316
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2021

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) includes the federal
grant activity of Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended December 31, 2021. The information in the Schedule is
presented in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a portion of the operations of the
Foundation, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets or cash flows of the Foundation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniforrh Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The Foundation has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.
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OocuSign Envelope ID: 0CAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-D888C190DAB7

FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section I. - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material \A/eakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Unmodified

yes

yes

yes

yes

yes

Unmodified

yes

Identification of Maior Programs

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Prooram or Cluster

no

none reported

no

no

none reported

no

93.074 Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Public Health
Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Aligned Cooperative
Agreements

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$750,000

_x yes _ no

Section II. - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None noted

Section III. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section I. - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None noted

Section II. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted
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BOARD OF DIREaORS 2022

Sue Mooney, MD, Chair

Lauren Collins-Cline, Vice Chair

Stephen Ahnen, Secretary / Treasurer

Peter Ames, ex officio

Deb Broadhead, RN

Joceiyn Capie, MD

Scott Colby

Jay Couture, Immediate Past Chair

James Culhane

Mike Decelle

Cherie Holmes, MD

Sally Kraft, MD

Eileen Liponis

Lisa Madden

Tom Manion

Holly McCormack, MSN

Betsey Rhynhart

Jeremy Roberge, CPA

John Skevington

Helen Taft

Susan Walsh

Andrew Watt, MD

President & CEO, Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital

Director, Corporate Communications & PR, Catholic Medical Center

President, New Hampshire Hospital Association

Executive Director, Foundation for Healthy Communities

Director, Healthcare Management, Anthem

CMC, Interim CEO, Valley Regional Hospital

President, Upper Connecticut Vailey Hospital

President & CEO, Seacoast Mental Health Center

President & CEO, Lake Sunapee Visiting Nurses Association

Dean, UNH Manchester

CMO, Cheshire Medical Center

Vice President of Population Health, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health

Executive Director, New Hampshire Food Bank

President and CEO, Riverbend Community Mental Health Center

President and CEO, New London Hospital

CEO, Cottage Hospital

Vice President, Population Health, Concord Hospital

President & CEO, Huggins Hospital

CEO, Parkland Medical Center

Former Executive Director, Families First

Strategic Business Lead, NH, Harvard Pilgrim Health Care

CMIO, Catholic Medical Center
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Beth Gustafson

Wheeler

Profile Summary

• Work with New Hampshire's non-profit communit)' hospitals to advance population health efforts including

building collaborative oppormnities with internal, communit)- and statewide partners.

•  Successful public health professional with 29 years of experience in building healthy environments where people
live, learn, work and play.

•  Strong skills in facilitation, partnership building, communit)' assessment and strategic planning.

•  Experienced in evaluating health improvement strategies using qualitadve and quantitative measurement practices.

•  Guided New Hampshire communities in the planning and implementation of health improvement strategies in

the areas of heart disease, diabetes prevention, and obesity.

Experience

1/03 - present:

4/02- 12/02:

11/97 - 6/00:

Foundation for Healthy Communities, Concord, NH
Director ofPoptila/ion Health

•  Provide leadership and technical assistance to NHs non-profit community hospitals to assess
current population health efforts, identify opportunities for advancement, and build collaborative
partnerships to ensure efficient and impactful investments in population health.

• Work wath healthcare systems and communitt- organizations to foster connections and shared
learning to improve the health and w-ellbeing of NH residents.

•  Convene hospital communit)' benefit professionals and lead projects to improve the effectiveness
and efficiency of communit)' benefit reporting and investments in NH.

•  Conduct environmental, system and policy assessments for communities and organizations to guide
strategic direction for health improvement efforts.

•  Determine baseline measures of key health indicators and establish measurement practices.
•  Managed the Healthy Plating Active laving (HEAI.) NH community grant program, including

technical assistance and grant requirements for HEAL's 4 regional and 4 community initiatives.

•  Planned and facilitated community fonims and focus groups as part of HEAL NH's community-
based participatory assessment and planning processes.

•  Initiated and managed the NH CATCH Kids Club Project, spreading the project to over 130 out-of-
school organizations and sites in 7 years.

•  Developed and implemented environment and policy assessment and planning tools for out of
school organizations, resulting in 98% of sites making 4+ environmental or policy improvements.

•  Directed the Community Prevention and Treatment Initiative focused on building a community
health model to improve access to prevention and treatment ser\'iccs for cardiovascular disease,
diabetes, and childhood obesity. Model implemented in a total of 17 NH communities.

•  y\ssisted primary care practices in quality improvement projects relating to the development of
office-based systems, tools, and evaluation methods for chronic disease conditions.

Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH
Senior Healthcan Consnltant

•  Collaborated with administrators and clinical staff to develop a diabetes management initiative.
•  Developed, analyzed and presented healthcare data reports to medical and administrative staff.
• Worked with internal staff to address healthcare access issues in the state.

Disease ManagementfPrevention Specialist
• Worked with primar)' care physicians and staff to improve prevention screening rates.
•  Developed and evaluated cardiovascular disease health management programs.
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Beth Gustafson

Wheeler

Resume

Page 2

8/00 - 4/02: Plymouth State College, University System of New Hampshire, Plymouth, NH
Wellness Center Director

•  Initiated and chaired the Whole Health Team, a multi-department team dedicated to improving the
health of Plymouth State College students.

•  Developed, promoted, and implemented health education programs for PSC students.

•  Trained and supcr\'ised student educators in group facilitation and education.

•  Adjunct faculty member. Department of Human Health and Performance.

9/95 - 5/97: Matthew Thornton Health Plan, Bedford, NH
\Y^Qrksite Health Promotion Specialist

•  Consulted with corporate accounts on employee health improvement issues providing strateg)'
development and implementation to reduce medical loss ratios and contain health care costs.

•  Planned, promoted, and performed health risk screenings and health education programming.
•  Kvaluated health programs targeted at employer groups and members.

•  Super\'ised team of per diem clinical and educational staff.

9/94 - 9/95: Universit)' of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Gradnate Assistant

•  Coordinated the University of New Hampshire Phase 111 Cardiac Rehabilitation Program.

•  Instructed fitness classes antl performed cholesterol, EKG, and exercise tolerance testing.

Education

Masters of Science in Kinesiolog)': Universit}* of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, 1996. Thesis Research Project; High
volume versus low volume resistance exercise: The effects ofa single session on plasma lipid and lipoprotein parameters.

Bachelors of Science in Communit)* Health: Plymouth State College, Plymouth, NH, 1990.

Certifications and Trainings

•  Communit}* Benefit Specialist Certificate, Communit}* Benefit Connect, 2021

•  Populadon Health Action Community, team participant. Institute for Healthcare Improvement, 2020-21

•  Certified Trainer: CATCH Kids Club, a physical activity and nutrition program, 2009- present
•  Health Impact Assessment Training, Manchester Health Department, October 2010

Awards:

•  High Five Award, NH Recreation and Park Association, May 2010

•  Outstanding Achievement Award, NH Governor's Council on Physical Fitness and Health, May 2010

Professional Affiliations

•  Association for Community Health Improvement Member 2017-presenr

•  NH Public Health Association Member: 2014-present

•  Concord Boys & Girls Club Program Committee 2011 - 2013

•  Appalachian Trail Conference member 2007- present

References available upon request
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Luellyn Valtin, MHL, CPPS, CPHRM, CPHQ

Page I 1

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Reliable, collaborative, innovative and results driven quality, patient safety and performance improvement
individual with 10+ years of experience in leading and implementing projects of various size and scope.
Particularly successful in taking unstructured or complex projects, systems, and guiding them from start to
finish. Recognized ability to maintain an organized and structured work environment. Strong communication,
team building and conflict-resolution skills.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Senior Director of Rural Quality Improvement Foundation for Healthy Communities Get 2021 -Present

Support Critical Access Hospitals to address access to care in rural and medically underserved areas of
New Hampshire

Manage Small Rural Hospital Improvement Grant Program (SHIP)

Manage Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility (FLEX) Program
Manage Eastern US Quality Collaborative Initiative (EQIC)

Patient Safety Director

Ethics Compliance Coordinator
Parkland Medical Center | Derry, NH Dec 2019 - Present

Oct 2020 - Present

Implement and evaluate annual Clinical Safety Improvement Program
Implement, analyze and present AHRQ Patient Safety Culture Survey results to Board of Trustees, Senior
Leaders, Medical Executive Committee and Department Leaders. Collaborate with Department Leaders
and frontline staff to develop meaningful and sustainable improvement plans
Facilitate root cause analyses on reportable and non-reportable events determined by tracking and
trending near miss events

Develop department level Patient Safety Champions support structure including education in Just
Culture, High Reliability, Psychological Safety, TeamSTEPPS

Develop, implement and evaluate annual Patient Safety and Risk Management Plan and perform
ongoing assessment of Patient Safety Program

Manage event reporting system to include investigation, trending and identification of opportunities for
improvement

Facilitate monthly multidisciplinary Patient Safety Committee

Facilitate TeamSTEPPS training program

Perform ongoing assessments to improve patient safety; review patient safety information from
aggregated data reports to prioritize organizational patient safety activities, i.e., falls, pressure related
injuries, hospital acquired infections

Facilitate Joint Commission survey readiness

Conduct new hire staff and provider education related to patient safety initiatives, event reporting and
teamwork principles

Manage medical malpractice and general liability claims

Supervise of Quality RN in the management of patient complaint and grievance process
Review and revise hospital ADA policies, processes and procedures to ensure compliance with
Americans with Disabilities Act

Conducted employee education related to non-discrimination and reasonable accommodations
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Operational Excellence Specialist Parkland Medical Center | Derry, NH Jul 2017 - Dec 2019

•  Introduced a new, comprehensive approach to Joint Commission survey readiness with system and

individual tracers for each department

•  Conducted 30+ survey tracers in collaboration with department leaders and developed survey follow up

action plans based on tracer findings and achieved Joint Commission reaccreditation with zero patient
care findings

•  Conducted proactive risk assessments and developed plans for eliminating/mitigating ligature risks in

the Emergency Department, Behavioral Health Unit and Inpatient Units

•  Designed and implemented review tool to monitor the safety, appropriateness and necessity of

restraint/seclusion use

•  Actively managed the process for attaining first time Joint Commission Certifications for Total Knee

Replacement, Total Hip Replacement and Spine Surgery programs which included development of

Performance Improvement Plan, Scope of Service, determination of process and performance

improvement metrics and reporting structure

•  Provided analysis and trending reports of readmission and emergency department frequent user data to

Leadership and external stakeholders including local provider practices, home health agencies and

nursing homes to target avoidable readmissions and overutilization of emergency department resources

•  Redesigned process for Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation and Focused Professional Practice

Evaluation

•  Provided support and knowledge to Patient Safety Director for risk related issues

•  Provided support and knowledge regarding Joint Commission and CMS requirements related to patient

complaints and grievances to Patient Safety RN

•  Oversaw data management and submission of quality data to the Foundation for Healthy Communities

through the Hospital Improvement and Innovation Network and evaluation of Quality Trends analysis,

VBP Program, HCA Reduction Program Analysis and Medicare Quality Programs Overview Report to

identify opportunities and performance improvement objectives

•  Facilitated successful submission of CMS validation templates and requested medical records for

Hospital lnpatient Quality Reporting (IQR) Program Fiscal Year 2020

Patient Liaison. Catholic Medical Center | Manchester, NH Sept 2016 - Jul 2017

•  Management of patient complaint and grievance process which included analysis of data resulting in

performance and process improvement initiatives

•  Analysis of Press Ganey data/reports to define improvement objectives and develop process
improvement action plans

•  Facilitated DiSC profile workshops for over 200 nursing staff

•  Facilitated AIDET principles training module for all hospital staff
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Patient Safety Officer

Quality and Risk Manager

Corporate Compliance Officer

Cobleskill Regional Hospital.j.Cobieskill, NY Jul 2014-Sept 2016

Managed Patient Safety, Risk Management, Quality, Compliance and Medical Staff Programs

Developed, implemented and evaluated yearly Patient Safety and Quality Perforrnance Improvement

Plan

Supervised Data and Process Analyst, Infection Control/Disaster Management Coordinator and Medical

Staff Coordinator

Analyzed and presented AHRQ Patient Safety Culture Survey results to Board of Trustees, Senior

Leaders, Medical Executive Committee and Department Leaders. Collaborated with Department

Leaders and frontline staff to develop meaningful and sustainable improvement plans in the areas of

teamwork within units, teamwork across units and handoffs & transitions

Facilitated FMEAs, Implemented action plans and monitored measures of effectiveness

Facilitated root cause analyses on reportable and non-reportable events determined by tracking and

trending near miss events

Tracked and trended incident reports to identify performance improvement actions; submitted reports

to Patient Safety Organization as patient safety work product

Participated in several Lean process improvement initiatives resulting in a decrease of 44 minutes in

admit decision to time of departure from ED for admitted patients; improved outpatient flow for

orthopedic/radiology patients and recognized $10,000 in savings through the implementation of a
push/pull supply process. Lean Six Sigma Green Belt certified

Successfully facilitated Department of Health and CMS surveys that resulted in no findings or statements

of deficiency

Analyzed quality and performance data and prepared and presented statistical reports to Quality

Oversight Committee, Medical Executive Committee, Board of Trustees and other committees as

requested

Organized hospital wide education on Joint Commission standards to ensure regulatory readiness for

annual accreditation survey

Facilitated policy review and revision improvement initiative which resulted in consolidation, deletion

and revision of over 1,000 policies, procedures and protocols

Developed and facilitated AIDET principles training module for all hospital staff

Managed Press Ganey patient satisfaction survey including leadership, staff and provider education on
survey questions, analysis of data/reports and development, execution and monitoring of performance

improvement projects

Managed Medical Staff credentialing program

Managed Compliance Program which included development of yearly work plan, audits and evaluations

Manager of Legal Affairs

Patient Relations

Bassett Medical Center | Cooperstown, NY Jan 2009-Jul 2014

•  Supervised Patient Representative Service Coordinator

•  Developed Patient Safety Core Curriculum for Medical and Surgical Residency Program

•  Fielded and resolved risk calls and concerns from patients and family members, frontline staff and

medical providers
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Luellyn Valtin, MHL, CPPS, CPHRM, CPHQ
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Processed, tracked and trended incident reports through online incident reporting system and made

recommendations for actions and improvements

Managed sentinel adverse events, including State reporting, root cause analysis, plans of correction and
monitoring for compliance of implemented actions

Managed network wide medical malpractice and general liability claims and lawsuits for hospitals and
providers

Implemented a comprehensive risk management educational program through Medical Risk
Management (MRM), LLC to all employed physicians, non-physician clinicians, residents and nursing
staff focused on communication, electronic health record and documentation

Processed and prepared responses to CMS, Department of Health and Joint Commission complaints and
surveys

Co-facilitated CMS EMTALA survey that resulted in statement of deficiency requiring development of
plan of correction, implementation of corrective actions, staff and provider education, monitoring for
compliance and summary status reports to Board of Trustees

Facilitated Joint Commission required FMEAs, Irhplemented action plans and monitored measures of

effectiveness

Managed all aspects of the patient complaints and grievances program. Successfully resolved over 2,000

complaints and grievances. Worked closely with the Medical Director to resolve complex quality of care

and physician behavior issues

EDUCATION

Master of Health Leadership

Bachelor of Science, Community and Health Services

Western Governors University | Salt Lake City, UT

Empire State College | Saratoga, NY

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

> Certified Professional in Patient Safety (CPPS), Certified Board for Professionals in Patient Safety

> Certified Professional in Healthcare Risk Management (CPHRM), American Hospital Association

> Certified Professional in Healthcare Quality (CPHQ), National Association of Healthcare Quality
> Lean Six Sigma Green Belt Certification, SSigma

> TeamSTEPPS trained



DocuSign Envelope ID: OCAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7.D888C190DA87

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Key Personnel
SHIP

Through 05/31/2023:

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Beth Gustafson Wheeler, MS Director of Population
Health

$32,500

Luellyn Valtin, MHL, CPHQ, CPPS,

CPHRM

Senior Director, Rural

Quality Improvement
$12,500

June,] 2023-June 30, 2023:

Beth Gustafson Wheeler, MS . Director of Population
Health

$3,900

Luellyn Valtin, MHL, CPHQ, CPPS,
CPHRM

Senior Director, Rural

Quality Improvement
$1,100

July 1,2023-May31,2024

Beth Gustafson Wheeler, MS Director of Population
Health

$42,900

Luellyn Valtin, MHL, CPHQ, CPPS,
CPHRM

Senior Director, Rural

Quality Improvement
$12,100
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Lori A. ShiNnertc 29 HaZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commlsrioner 603-27MS01 1-800-852-334S Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-27M827 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Patricia M. 1 llley H'ww.(lhhs.nh.£OV

Director

November 3, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with Foundation for Healthy Communities (VC#154533).
Concord. NH. to support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals with
implementing COVID-19 testing and chronic disease mitigation activities, by increasing the price
limitation by $5,152,645 from $231,997 to $5,384,642 with no change to the contract completion
date of May 31, 2023. effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on May 19.2021, (Item #23).

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to assist the thirteen (13) New Hampshire.Small Rural
Hospitals that have been made financially vulnerable by the COVID-19 pandemic and fiscally
responsible for resource intensive COVID-19 testing and mitigation activities. A secondary
purpose of this funding is to support preventive and supportive services for chronic disease
patients in the Small Rural Hospital sen/ice areas.

The Contractor will conduct up to three (3) Medicare Bootcamp billing and coding trainings
each grant year to help support the revenue streams of New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals to
ensure maximum reimbursement for services is achieved. Additionally, the Contractor will work
with New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals to participate in a Population Health Peer Group to
share information and efforts they have used to improve the health of people living in the areas
surrounding rural hospitals.

This amendment supports existing programs and creates new programs to address
chronic disease prevention as well as Critical Access Hospital COVID-19 testing and mitigation
strategies. The Contractor will work with the Department to Improve health care in rural areas by
providing funding to support increased COVID-19 testing efforts and expand access to testing in
rural communities.

This request also provides funding to ensure the Contractor links New Hampshire Small
Rural Hospitals with resources to support implementation of chronic disease prevention and
management projects to meet the needs of patients with chronic and complex medical conditions,
including heart disease, diabetes, asthma, and arthritis.

The Deparimenl of Heallh and Human Services' M'mion ix to join commttnilies and families
in providing opportunities for cU'uens to achieve Ttedllh and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Chdstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

• Page 2 of 2

The Contractor will ensure that New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals and the laboratory
used for processing specimens collect, handle, process and test specimens in compliance with
guidelines issued by the CDC.

The Department will monitor contracted services by reviewing the reports from the
Contractor of work completed at each New Hampshire Small Rural Hospital and through monthly
monitoring meetings.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the thirteen (13) New
Hampshire Small Rural Hospital locations will not have assistance with funding to implement
COVID-19 testing and chronic disease mitigation activities.

Area served; Rural areas served by New Hampshire's Small Rural Hospitals

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number (ALN#) (formerly CFDA#) 93.426,
FAIN #NU58DP006515: ALN #93.945, FAIN #NU58DP006448: ALN #93.155, FAIN #H3L42248:
ALN #93.301. FAIN #H3JRH37448: ALN #93.391, FAIN #NH750T00031

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

by:by:

^>~2«DAS37£OeCB^_

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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Fiscal Details Attachment

OS-95-90-902010-12270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH/BUREAU OF POLCY & PERFORMANCE, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

90017003

(heart)
$0 $150,000 $150,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

90017003

(diabetes)
$0 $250,000 $250,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

90017003

(heart)
so $25,000 $25,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

9001703

(diabetes)
so $25,000 $25,000

Subtotal $0 $450,000 $450,000

05-95-90-902010-70460000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contractsfor

Program Services

90017717

(arthritis)
So $80,000 $80,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

90017717

(arthritis)
SO $80,000 $80,000

Subtotal $0 $160,000 $160,000

05-95-90-901010-24970000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, SHIP ARP COVID MITIGATION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90076020 so $3,066,713 $3,066,713

Subtotal $0 $3,066,713 $3,066,713

05-95-90-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH COVID-10 HEALTH DISPARITIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90577100 SO $1,420,000 $1,420,000

Subtotal $0 $1,420,000 $1,420,000
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Fiscal Details Attachment

05-95-90-901010-2219 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
OF PUBLIC HEALTH, SMALL HOSPITAL IMPROVEMENT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90076001 S9,667 SO $9,667

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90076001 $116,000 $55,932 $171,932

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90076001 $106,330 SO 5106,330

Subtotal $231,997 $55,932 $287,929

TOTAL $231,997 $5,152,645 $5,364,642
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting project is by and between
the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("Stale" or "Department") and
Foundation for Healthy Communities ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 19, 2021, (Item #23). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A. Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, Section 1. Subsection 1.2.. the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these sen/ices; and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,384,642.

2. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-Amendment #1
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, in order to
respond to Small Rural Hospital needs exacerbated by the COVID-19 Pandemic. ■

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, by adding Subsection 3.1 to read:

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a stipend of $4,170 per hospital per Exhibit 8 - Amendment
#1, Scope of Services, as budgeted for In Exhibit C-2 - Amendment #1 Budget and Exhibit
C-3 - Amendment #1 Budget.

4. Modify Exhibit C-2 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety \Mth Exhibit C-2 - Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit C-3, Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-3 - Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto artd incorporated by reference herein.

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A01 Foundation for Healthy Communilies Contractor Initials:

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Date: ^
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/19/2021

Date

•OoeuSlgncd by.

Title

M. Ti I ley

Title: Director

11/19/2021

Date

Foundation for Healthy Communities
OeevSiQnbd by

Name'"^^W'-'"An.es
Title: Executive Director

RFA-2021 •DPHS-06-SMALL-01 -AGI Foundalion (or Heallhy Communities Contractor Initials:

OS

A-S-1.0 Page 2 o( 3 Date:
11/19/2021
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■ OocuSIgiMtf bjr.

11/19/2021 J. (juriidfiur
03(0 ^'3^'^'!^"£Hr^istopher Marshall

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

RFA-2021-DPHS-OS-$MALL-01-A01 Foundation for Healthy Communities Contractor initials;

—M

rA

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3 Date: ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project

EXHIBIT B • Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall assist and support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small
Rural Hospitals (SRHs) to implement the activities the hospitals choose as a
group from the menu of grant activities provided annually by the Small Rural
Hospital Improvement Program (SHIP) Grant, which may include, but are not ■
limited to:

1.1.1. Joining accountable care organizations (ACOs).

' 1.1.2. Participating in shared savings programs.

1.1.3. Purchasing health information technology, to comply with quality
improvement activities, which may include advancing patient care
information, promoting interoperability, and payment bundling.

1.2. The Contractor shall engage the thirteen (13) New Hampshire SRHs in order to
identify how small rural facilities can target their services to the areas of highest
need. The Contractor shall:

1.2.1. Facilitate a peer-learning group of SRHs with the goal of sharing lessons
learned and current efforts to promote population health.

1.2.2. Support hospitals in completing the Pathways to Population Health
■ Compass Assessment to obtain a baseline of where their current
population health efforts are along the continuum and provide a stipend
of $4,170 per hospital upon completion of the assessment.

1.2.3. Analyze the community benefit activities completed by the SRHs and
match expenditures to the most recent Community Health Needs
Assessments to create an investment portfolio for each SRH.

1.2.4. Assist SRHs with identifying priority areas, as supported by data reports
issued by the Bureau of Public Health Statistics and Informatics (BPHSI)
which uses aggregated data, publicly available on the State of New
Hampshire DHHS Data Portal, and connecting the SRHs with State and
community resources to accomplish identified goals.

1.2.5. Liaise with the Department's DPHS Rural Health Manager to find
resources available for initiatives that SRHs are interested in

implementing.

1.2.6. Identify Community Based Organizations that may support SRH
activities.

1.2.7. Appoint a Director of Population Health for this project who is available
to support SRHs and answer questions throughout the project period.

1.2.8. Host a monthly gathering of SRH population health managers, either
virtually or in-person. in order to :

[rA
RFA-2021-OPHS-06-SMALL-01-A01 FouixJation for Healfhy Communtties ContfaclOf Initials^ ■-

Pao,,.MO



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0CAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-D888C190DAB7

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: F012A2CA-A4E3^0eA-B4fl7-C9461A04F592

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.2.8.1. Provide networking opportunities.

1.2.8.2. Provide resources for hospitals ready for the next phase of
the project, as defined in the work plan.

1.2.8.3. Share success stories and lessons learned from those who

have successfully implemented initiatives.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all contract activities are pre-approved by the
Department's Rural Health and Primary Care Section (RHPCS).

1.4. The Contractor shall coordinate a minimum of two (2) Medicare Bootcamps per
year, not to exceed three (3) Medicare Bootcamps per year. The Contractor
shall-ensure:

1.4.1. Medicare Bootcamp curriculum supports the SRH revenue streams by
ensuring maximal reimbursement for services is obtained.

1.4.2. SRHs are aware of scholarship funds available to support staff
attendance at Medicare Bootcamp trainings.

1.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to manage a scholarship
program that promotes Medicare Bootcamp attendance for SRH staff.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain a Medicare Bootcamp attendance list that
includes telephone and email contact information for each attendee, which must
be given to the Department's RHPCS no later than two (2) weeks following each
training.

1.7. The Contractor shall evaluate all activities, projects and trainings by utilizing
evaluation tools provided by the Department or by adding evaluation questions
to the Contractor's topis.

1.8. The Contractor shall assess the content of projects, activities, and/or trainings
for quality and the long-term effects on the function of SRHs.

1.9. The Contractor shall meet, in a frequency determined by the Contractor and
SRHs, with a representative group of Chief Financial Officers for the SRHs to
plan aspects of learning sessions, which include but are not limited to:

1.9.1. Major objectives of the Bootcamps.

1.9.2. Recruitment of participants for the sessions.

1.9.3. Organization of all components of the education sessions for delivery. ■

1.9.4. Creation or selection of learning sessions based on the needs prioritized
by Chief Financial Officers.

1.10. The Contractor shall engage each interested SRH in the Population Health and
Hotspotting Project (PHHP), which utilizes hospital inpatient and outpatient data
provided by the Department as well as several National datasets to examine
where certain physical health and social determinants of health risk faptcnK are

RFA-2021-OPHS-06-SMALL-01-A01 Fourtdalion for Healthy Cominunttlos Contractor Inilials

11/19/2021
8-1.0 Page 2 of 10 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspctting Project

EXHIBITS-Amendment#!

clustered in hospital service areas to improve the health of residents in each
hospital service area and ensure maximal reimbursement in the transition to
value-based payments. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are
not limited to:

1.10.1. Completing the Pathways to Population Health Compass Assessment,
created by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement, to assess how the
SRH are supporting population health efforts in their service area. The
Contractor shall ensue the assessment team includes a variety of
stakeholders, which may include but are not limited to:

1.10.1.1. PHHP contact. .,/■

1.10.1.2. Staff responsible for Population Health.

1.10.1.3. Community Health Workers/Care Coordinators.

1.10.1.4. Hospital administration.

1.10.1.5. Staff responsible for Community Benefits.

1.10.1.6. Quality improvement staff.

1.10.1.7. Staff responsible for Patient & Family Engagement.
1.10.2. Engaging SRHs to participate in the Population Health Peer Group,

which includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.2.1. Peer-to-peer sharing of best practices.

1.10.2.2. Tools utilized to create/promote population health initiatives.

1.10.2.3. Overall strategies related to population health.

-  1.10.3. Creating community benefits profiles by outlining:
1.10.3.1. Community investments;

1.10.3.2. Health disparities identified; and

1.10.3.3. Identification of how hospital investments are addressing
identified disparities.

1.10.4. Supporting SRHs with identifying goals that advance population health
.efforts, by reviewing service area ho.tspotting analyses from the
Department. The Contractor shall review hotspotting analyses, which
includes but is not limited to:

1.10.4.1. Mapping of aggregate resident data by service area.

1.10.4.2. Heat maps that indicate clusters of population health and
social determinants of health needs in hospital service
areas.

. . [MRFA-2021-OPHS-06-SMALL-01-A01 Found8lion for Hoalthy Communitios Contractor Intiisls

B-1.0 Page 3 of 10
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project

EXHIBIT 6 - Amendment #1

1.10.4.3. Highlights of the most prevalent needs in hospital service
areas and alignment with corrimunity benefit profiles to
indicate opportunities for future investments.

1.10.5. Assisting with the creation of action plans to address health disparities;
support effective and efficient investments; and improve population
health efforts.

■  1.10.6. Evaluating the data by:

1.10.6.1. Assisting each hospital in the'identification of metrics to
measure progress with population health activities; and ■

1.10.6.2. Revisiting data at each development meeting with the SRHs
to understand the impact of population health activities, the
data includes:

1.10.6.2.1.GIS Mapping/Hot-Spotting data;

1.10.6.2.2.Completing and/or reviewing IHI Pathways to
Population Health Compass Assessments,
periodically, to measure progress; and

1.10.6.2.3. Community Benefit Profiles and investments.

1.10.6.3. Creating case study write-ups at the conclusion of the
projects through a guided interview process that can then be
shared with SRH peers.

1.10.7. Acting as the liaison between the Department's DPHS. Bureau of Public
Health Statistics and Informatics (BPHSI) and the SRH(s).

1.10.8. Meeting with hospital leadership to define which member(s) of each
hospital will participate in a learning collaborative for population health
initiatives.

1.10.9. Documenting monthly the number of times:

1.10.9.1., Contact was attempted via telephone.

1.10.9.2. Contact was made via telephone.

1.10.9.3. Meeting was held via telephone.

1.10.9.4. In-person meeting was completed.

1.10.9.5. New hospital representative was recruited for learning
collaborative.

1.10.10. Documenting the number of SRHs that participate in the learning
collaborative meetings, specifying dale, time, and participants.

1.10.11.Referring SRHs to resources and programs available to enhance
population health efforts including those available at the Bgnftgu of

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A01 Foundolion for Heallhy Communilies Conlraclor Initials

D^n O . r.n « 11/19/2021B-1.0 Page 4 of 10 Date '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project

EXHIBIT 8' Amendment #1

Population Health and Community Services and the other Community
Based Organizations to implement and bolster new initiatives.

1.10.12. Engaging SRHs in the Strategic Population Health Activities for Rural
Communities (SPARC) project ' by linking interested SRHs with
resources that support implementation of prograrhs that meet the needs
of patients with chronic and complex medical conditions, which result
in prevention of unnecessary hospital visits.

1.10.13. Referring SRHs to resources that support implementation of chronic
disease prevention and management projects that focus on:

1.10.13.1. Using surveillance data and data from the electronic health
record to develop plans to target:;

1.10.13.1.1. Heart disease;

1.10.13.1.2. Diabetes;

1.10.13.1.3. Asthma; and

1.10.13.1.4. Arthritis;

1.10.13.2. Implementing strategies to increase use of recommended
preventive clinical strategies from the United States
Preventive Services Taskforce;

1.10.13.3. Linking clinical and community supports to' help reduce
health disparities; and

1.10.13.4. Making policy, system and environmental changes In the
community that help community members live healthy lives.

1.11. The Contractor shall engage SRHs to develop initiatives in partnership with the
providers that may include, but are not limited to:

1.11.1. Area Emergency Medical Services (EMS) agencies.

1.11.2. Diabetes Care and Education Specialists.

1.11.3. Diabetes Education Program Coordinators.

1.11.4. Pharmacists.

1.11.5. Physical Therapists.

1.11.6. Community Health Workers.

1.11.7. Care Coordinators.

1.11.8. Primary Care Providers.

1.11.9. Regional Planning Commissions.

1.11.10. Population Health Staff.

1.11.11. Quality Assurance and/or Quality Improvement Staff.

RFA-2021-OPHS-0&-SMAU.4)1'A01 Foundslion fof Healthy Communiiies Contractor initials^

B-1.0 Page 5 of10 Date
11/19/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project

EXHIBITS-Amendment #1

1.11.12. EMS Medical Director.

1.11.13. EMS Medical Coordinator.

1.11.14. Emergency Department staff.

1.11.15. Visiting Nurses Associations.

1.11.16. Home Health Agencies.

1.11.17.Mobile Integrated Healthcare Programs that meet the requirements of
the NH Bureau of EMS and are licensed.

1.12. The Contractor shall monitor completion of Department approved SRH Work
Plans and pay related monthly invoices within one week of receiving invoices
for Department approved expenses.

1.13. Work Plan

1.13.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department to finalize a Work Plan
for year one (1) of the Contract period within thirty (30) days of the
Contract effective date.

1.13.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a draft Work Plan for year two
(2) of the contract period no later than ninety (90) days prior to the end
of year one (1) of the Contract period.

1.13.3. The Contractor shall work with the Department to finalize the Work Plan
,  for year two (2) of the Contract period prior to the start pf year two (2).

1.13.4. The Contractor shall ensure work plans are used to confirm progress
toward meeting the performance measures and program objectives.

1.13.5. The Contractor shall provide a final staffing and staffing contingency
plan to the Department no later than five (5) days from the contract
effective date.

1.14. The Contractor shall, in collaboration with the Department, work to improve
COVID-19 testing and mitigation in small rural hospital service areas, by
following current CDC guidance relative to COVID-19 testing and mitigation.

1.15. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance on conducting
specimen collection and testing for SARS-CoV-2,- in accordance with CDC
guidelines, in an outpatient setting for individuals who reside within the hospital
catchment area or local community, regardless of individuals' prior affiliations
with the hospital.-

1.16. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance on collecting,
handling, processing and testing specimens in compliance with guidelines
issues by the CDC and by the laboratory used for processing specimens.

1.17. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance on providing
communication and language assistance to individuals, as approprjata and

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A01 Foundation (or Healthy Communliies Contractor Initials

11/19/2021
B-1.0 Page 6 o( 10 Oato



DocuSign Envelope ID; OCAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-D888C190DAB7

DocuSIgn Envelope 10: F012A2CA-A4£3-40£A:B497-C946IA04F592

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

needed, to ensure the validity of any signed consent by utilizing translated
consent forms and/or interpreters.

1.18. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance that all
personnel collecting, handling, processing and transporting specimens are
trained to safeguard the confidentiality of the patient and protected health
information (PHI), as defined in the Health Information Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA).

1.19. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to .the Department's guidance that
transportation of specimens to the laboratory must be secure and confidential.

1.20. The contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance that the
ordering provider for each COVID-19 test must be a licensed medical provider.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall communicate to the Department's RHPCS through
monthly meetings held in person or with the use of a virtual platform that shall
include, but is not limited to the following information;

3.1.1. Plans for implementing SHIP menu activities.

3.1.2. Specific activities provided.

3.1.3. Budget status.

3.1.4. An attendance list for activities held.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure all reports are formatted in a manner that can be
shared directly with the SRHs.

3.3. The Contractor shall, in accordance with best practice standards and
processes as provided by the Office of Health Equity, ensure SRHs consistently
collect correct race and/or ethnicity demographic identifiers for individuals
receiving COVID-19 testing and .enter the information either manually or
electronically on the hospital or reference laboratory COVID-19 lest re^gition

RFA-2021-OPHS-06-SMALL-01-A01 Foundalion for Healihy Cooimuniiios Contractorlnllials
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EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

forms.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

4.1.1. 50% of participant's report making a change or planning to make a
change in their billing processes as a result of attendance at Medicare
Bootcamp.

4.1.2. 50% of SRHs engage In the Population Health Peer Group through
recruitment efforts by the Contractor.

4.1.3. Outreach to all SRHs to engage them In the Population Health and
Hotspotting project.

4.1.4. 100% of all chronic disease prevention funded projects are written up
in the form of case studies in a format guided by the Division within
six months of the project period closing.

4.2. The Contractor shall develop-and submit a Corrective Action Plan for any
performance measure in Section 4.1 that are not achieved to the Department
on an annual basis.

4.3. The Contractor shall complete quarterly reports as required by the Department.
The quarterly report shall be completed for each hospital participating in the
American Rescue Plan Testing and Mitigation program in the portal provided
by the Health Resources and Services Administration. Quarterly reporting for
SPARC projects should include progress by SRHs on implemeritation and
short-term outcome measures and information on financial expenditures.

4.4. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate with providers, to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.5. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from Contractor(s),
Including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.6. The Department may Identify expectations for active and regular collaboratipn,
including .key performance objectives, in the resulting contract. Where
applicable, Contractor(s) must collect and share data with the Department in a
format specified by the Department.

4.7. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery

■ and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.8. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service

TA
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data.

4.9. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1.' The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language' assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have'speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

(2i
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5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received,
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the

■  Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. .
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Cordncr. Sccrctan.' ofSiaicofihc SiatcofNcw Mampshirc, do hereby ccrtif)' ihat FOUNDATION FOR IIEALTHY

COMMUNITIES is a New Mampshirc Nonproni Corporation rcgisicrcd lo transact business in New l lampshirc on October 28.

1968. 1 funhcrecrtiry that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Siatc solTiec have been received and is in good

standing OS far as this olTiec i.s concerned.

Business ID: 63943

Certificate Number: 0005428713

ss

Urn

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand attd cause to be alTi.ved

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 30th day of August A.D. 2021.

w,

William M. Gardner

Sccrcior\' of State
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fbundation for
Healthy Conimimities

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORrrV

I, Stepli^T^ AHncOi of the Foundation for Healthy Communities, do hereby certify that;

1. 1 am the duly elected Secretnn'/Treasurer of the Foundation for Healthy Communities;

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted by action of unaniinous

consent of the Board pf Pirectors of the Foundation Healthy Communities duly adopted on
October 18. 2021:

RESOLVED: That this corporation, the Foundation for Healthy Communities, enters into any and all
contracts, amendments, renewals, revisions or modifications thereto, with the Stale of New Hampshire
acting through its Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director or the Vice President of Quality Improvement or the
Secretary / Treasurer for the Foundation for Healthy Communities are hereby authorized on behalf of
this corporation to cntCT into said contracts with the State, and to execute any and all documents,
agreements, and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto as he/she
may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. Peter Ames is the duly appointed Executive Director
and Kristmc Henng is the duly appointed Vice President of Quality Improvement and Stephen Ahnen
is the duly appointed Secretary/Treasurer of the corporation.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in fiill force and

effect as ofNovember 15. 2021.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. 1 have hereunto set my hand as the SecretaryyTreasurer nf

Foundation for Healthy Communities this 15'^dav ofNovember 2021.

BOARD MEMBER
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^COKD- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
TFAGERSON

OATe (MWDOAYirY)

6/2/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poilcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer riqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementts).

License d 1780862

HUB International Now England
275 US Route 1
Cumberland Foroslde, ME 04110

cjN^ACT Gabe Reissman
aHONE FAX
IWC.NaEMl: IMC. He):

flabe.relssman(^hublnternaUonal.com

msuRKftrst ArroRDMO coverage MAICE

INSURER A: Hartford Casualty insurance Comoanv 29424

(Hsuneo Hampshire Hospital Assoc.
The Foundation for Healthy Communities
Attn; Linda Levesquo
125 Airport Road
Concord. NH 03301

INSURER a-.Twin Citv Fire insurance Comosnv 29459

INSURER C :

INSURERS:

INSURER E

INSURER r ;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF .INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDCNG ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE or INSURANCE

AOOL
INIiR

SUBR
VYYR POUCrNUMBER LIMITS 1

A X COMMERCIAL CENBRAL LIABILITY

E 1 X [ OCCUR X 08 SBA VW2923 6/22/2021 6/22/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
j  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
OAMACE TO RENTED j  300,000

MEO EXP (Aflv oot oefMot
J  10,000

PERSONAL 4 ADVWJlPtY
j  1,000,000

IgEITL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; 1 GENERAL AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

POLICY 1 IlOC
OTHFR:

PRODUCTS • COMPTOP AGO
,  2,000,000

»

1 AUTOMOeiLE LUBILITY COMStNEO SINGLE LIMIT
IF» ■nSrtKnll i

ANY AUTO
:HEpULEO
rroS

ffom?

800ILY INJURY (Per o«r«on) s
OWNCO
AUTOS ONLY

aS^only

SC
AL eOOlLY INJURY fPir»«kl»nll s

NC
aC

mOPERTY DAMAGE
iP*> ecddAnty S

»

A JL UMBRELU LlAB

EXCESS LtAB

_X_ OCCUR

CLABiS-UAOE X

1

08 SBA VW2923 6/22/2021 6/22/2022
EACH OCCORREMCE J  , 2,000,000
AGGREGATE j  2,000,000

1 OeO 1 X 1 RETEKTIONJ 10,000
B WORKERS COMrENSATION

AKO EHPIOTERS' LiABJLfTY ^
AMY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEWeXECLmVE (~~1

1—1
e M*. SMcHbe uficv
ofeSCRiPTON OF OPERATIOMS

HI A

]

08WECIV5263 6/22/2021 6/22/2022 j
PER OTH.
STATlfTF FR

F I. FACH ACCrOPNT j  500,000
E.L. DtSEASF . FA FMPlOYEF ^  500,000

E L. DISEASE. POLCYLIUIT
^  500,000

oeSCRlPTlON or OeCfUTlOKS l locations I vehicles (ACORO IOI. AddieonN Rwntrkt SclMdiNt. m«y b« atttchcd II mor« *pic« U itquir*d)

Foundation for Healthy Communities Is coneldered a Named Insured for the above mentioned policies.

Slate of NH
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
accordance WTTH the policy PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) ®1988-201SACORD CORPORATION. All rights roservod.
The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Foundation for
Healthy Communities

B497-C9461/

0

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Mission Statement

The mission of the Foundation for Healthy

Communities is to build healthier communities

for all by leading partnerships, fostering

collaboration, and creating innovative solutions

to advance health and health care.

125 Airpon Rund j Concord. NH 03301 j Plionc: (603) 225-0900 j Fax: (603) 225-4346

www.healiUynh.org j info^icalihynh.ory
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Foundation's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opiniori
on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
•audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Foundation as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Portland. Maine

June 10, 2021
Molne • New Hampshire • Mossochusetis • Connecticut • Westvirginio • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS

2020 2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from affiliate

Prepaid expenses

$ 345,201

547,234

115,780
10.334

$ 593.892

357,452
112,530

9.610

Total current assets 1.018.549 1.073.484

Investments 962.689 672.550

Property and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Equipment and furniture

1,118
147.427

1,118

■  147.427

Less accumulated depreciation
148,545
148.145

148,545
145.398

Property and equipment, net 400 3.147

Total assets $1,981,638 $1,949,181

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related amounts
Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

S  21,119
91,070

97,731
.  6.949

$  142,961
46,185

61,687

8.013

Total current liabilities and total liabilities 216.869 258.846

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Operating ,
Internally designated

923,080
489.296

791,489

538.496

Total without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

1,412,376
352.393

1,329,985
360.350

Total net assets 1.764.769 1.690.335

Total liabilities and net assets $1,981,638 31.949.181

The accompanying notes are an integral-part of these financial statements.

-3-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and

workshops
Interest and dividend income

Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments

Gifts and donations

Grant support
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from internally
designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits
Other operating
Program services.
.Seminars, meetings, and .

workshops
Depreciation
Recovery of bad debts

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations and total
change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internally
Operatino Designated

$ 463,120 $
3,396,795

22,033

18,519

93,504
196

Total

338.026

286.413

1,462,230
124,109

2,865,199

33,130
2,747
(AOO)

4.487.015

131,591

791.489

237,213

f286.4131

With Donor

Restrictions

$ 463,120 $

3,396,795

22,033

18,519

93,504

196

575,239

4.618.606 (49.2001 4.569.406

1,462,230

124,109

2,865,199

33,130
2,747

(4001

4.487.015

(49,200) 82,391

538.496 1.329.985

Total

$ 463,120
3,396.795

22,033
18,519

93,504
196

567,282567,282

(575,239)

(7.9571 4.561.449

1,462,230
124,109

2,865.199

33,130

2,747
(4001

4.487.015

(7,957) 74,434

360.350 1.690.335

$ 923.080 S 489.296 $1.412.376 $ 352.393 $1.764.769

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Interest and dividend income

Net realized and unrealized loss on

investments

Gifts and donations

Grant support
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from internally
designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits
Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Depreciation
Recovery of bad debts

Total expenses

Total change in net assets
from operations and total
change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internally
Operating Designated

$ 443,120 $
1,504,839

132,670

23,052

178,765
853

Total

556,044

151.083

1.357.584

128.316

1,222,755

191,284

3,078

f3.129)

2.899.888

42,670

n51.Q831

2.990.426 n08.4131 2.882.013

With Donor

Restrictions

$ 443,120 $
1.504,839

132,670
23,052

178.765

853

598,714

1,357,584

128,316

1,222,755

191,284

3,078
(3.1291

2.899.888

Total

$ 443,120

1,504.839

132,670
23,052

178,765
853

511,776511:776

(598,714)

(86.9381 2.795.075

-1,357,584

128,316

1,222.755

191,284

3,078
-(3.1291

2.899.888

90,538 (108.413) (17,875) (86,938) (104,813)

700.951 646.909 1.347.860 447.288 1.795.148

$  791.489 $ 538.496 $1.329.985 $ 360.350 $1.690.335

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 201?

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  74,434 $ (104,813)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

(used) provided by operating activities
. Depreciation 2,747 3,078
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments (93,504) (178,765)
Recovery of bad debts (400) (3.129)
(Increase) decrease in

Accounts receivable (189,382) 129.291
Prepaid expenses (724) (3.434)

(Decrease) increase in
Accounts payable (121,842) 138,414
Accrued payroll and related amounts 44,885 15,162
Due to/from affiliates 32,794 15,223
Deferred revenue f1.0641 2.567

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (252.0561 13.594

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments (1.890) .

Proceeds from sale of investments 5.255 10.021

Net cash provided by investing activities . 3.365 10.021

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (248,691) 23,615

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 593,892 570.277

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 345.201 $ 593.892

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

Organization

Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) was organized to conduct various activities relating
to healthcare delivery process improvement, health policy, and the creation of healthy communities.
The Foundation is controlled by New Hampshire Hospital Association (Association) whose purpose is
to assist its members in improving the health status of the people receiving healthcare in New
Hampshire.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

. reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Foundation. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Foundation's management
and the Board of Trustees.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations irriposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor restricted
contributions are reported as Increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without
donor restrictions in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. At December 31,
2020 and 2019, the Foundation did not have any funds to be maintained in perpetuity.

Cash and Cash Egulvalents

For purposes of reporting in the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

-7-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual
accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation, allowance and a credit to accounts
receivable. Management believes all accounts receivable are collectible. Credit is extended without
collateral.

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the statements of financial position. Interest and dividends
and realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets from
operations.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statements of financial position.

Property and Eouipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful lives of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line
method.

Employee Fringe Benefits

The Foundation has an "earned time" plan under which each employee earns paid leave for each
period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacation or illnesses. Hours earned but
not used are vested with the employee and may not exceed 30 days at year-end. The Foundation
accrues a liability for such paid leave as it is earned.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

Grants and Contributions

Grants awarded and contributions received in advance of expenditures are reported as support
with donor restrictions if they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the grants or
contributions. When a grant or contribution restriction expires, that is. when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and
changes in net assets as "net assets released from restrictions". If there are unused grant funds at
the time the grant restrictions expire, management seeks authorization from the grantor to retain
the unused grant funds to be used for other unspecified projects. If the Foundation receives-
authorization from the grantor, then the Board of Trustees or management Internally designates
the use of those funds for future projects. These amounts are released from net assets with donor
restrictions to internally designated net assets without donor restrictions and , reported in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets as "net assets released from restrictions".

Grant funds conditional upon submission of documentation of qualifying expenditures or matching
requirements are deemed to be earned and reported as revenues when the Foundation has met
the grant conditions.

The amount of such funds the Foundation will ultimately receive depends on the actual scope of
each program, as well as the availability of funds. The ultimate disposition of grant funds is subject
to audit by the awarding agencies.

Grant funds awarded of which restrictions have been met in the year of award are reported in the
consolidated statement of activities and changes in net assets in program services revenues and
expenses.

Contributions of long-lived assets are reported as support for net assets without donor restrictions
unless donor stipulations specify how the dpnated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long these long-lived assets must be maintained, the
Foundation reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets
are placed in service.

Income Taxes

The Foundation Is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501 (a) of the Code.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, the
Foundation has considered transactions or events occurring through June 10. 2021, which was the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Avallabilltv and Liauidltv of Financial Assets

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity required to meet Its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize the investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Foundation considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities and general and
administration, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next.12 months, the
Foundation operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources..

As of December 31, 2020, the Organization has working capital of $801,680 and average days
(based on normal expenditures) cash on hand of 78, which includes cash and cash equivalents
and investments, net of restricted funds.

The following financial assets could readily be available within one year of the statements of
financial position date to meet general expenditure at December 31:

2020 2019

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  345,201 $ • 593,892
Accounts receivable, net 547,234 357,452
Due from affiliate 116,780 .  112,530
Investments 962.689 872 550

Total financial assets 1,970.904 1,936,424

Internally designated funds (489,298) (538,496)
Donor restricted funds f352.393l (360.3501

Financial.assets available at year end for current use
to meet general expenditures $ 1.129.215 $ 1.037.578

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, internally designated net assets represent unused grant funds to
be used for other unspecified projects by management over the next 12 months. The internally
designated net assets are included in cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable, net.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

3. Investments

The composition of investments as of December 31 Is set forth in the following table. Investments
are stated at fair value.

2020 . 2019

Marketable equity securities $ 192,065 $ 228,985
Mutual funds 770.624 643!565

$  962.689 $ - ■872.550

4. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions of $352,393 and $360,350 consisted of specific grant programs
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The. grant programs relate to improvements to
access and the delivery of healthcare services.

5. Conditional Promise to Give

During 2016, the fecundation was awarded a grant from the State of New Hampshire in an amount
not to exceed $1,800,000 to facilitate the expansion of New Hampshire's addiction identification
and overdose prevention activities. Since the original award, the-State of New Hampshire has
amended the award amount increasing the grant to an amount not to^ exceed $4,575,824 as of
December 31, 2020. Receipt of the grant and recognition of the related revenue is conditional upon
incurring qualifying expenditures. For the years ended December 31. 2020 and 2019, the

. Foundation recognized program and grant support related to this award in the amount of
$1,104,493 and $552,082, respectively. As of'Oeceinber 31. 2020, $4,165,890 of the award has
been received.-

6. Related Party Transactions

The Foundation leases space from the Association. Rental expense under this lease for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $41,255 and $40,331, respectively.

•The Association provides .various accounting, public relation and janitorial services to the
Foundation. The amount expensed for these services in 2020 and 2019 was $173,468 and
$160,362, respectively. In addition,, the Association bills the Foundation for Its allocation of shared
costs. As of December 31. 2020 and 2019, the Foundation owed the Association $97,731 and
$61,687, respectively, for services and products provided by the Association.

The Association owed the Foundation $115,780 and $112.530 as of December 31, 2020 .and 2019,
respectively, for support allocated to the Foundation. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, the Foundation received support from the Association in the amount of $463,120
and $443,120, respectively.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

7. Retirement Plan

The Foundation participates in the Association's 401(k) profit-sharing plan, which covers
substantially all employees and allows for employee contributions of up to the maximum allowed
under Internal Revenue Service regulations. Employer contributions are discretionary and are
determined annually by the Foundation. Retirement plan expense for 2020 and 2019 was $48,803
and $45,109, respectively.

8. Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that iare attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently -applied. The expenses allocated to the general and administrative
function include salaries and related taxes, allocated based on the estimated time utilized on

programs, and insurance and. depreciation, allocated using bases estimating the proportional
allocation of total building square footage.

Expenses related to services provided for the public interest are as follows;

2020 ?919

Program services
Salaries and related taxes $1,256,722 $1,172,432
Office supplies and other 548,910 157.187

Occupancy 37,500 32,053
Subrecipients 2,068,198 491,629
Subcontractors 298,400 606,778
Seminars, meetings and workshops 36,700 222,646

Insurance 3.138 3,415
.  Depreciation 2.198 2.463

Total program services 4.251.766 2.688.603

General and administrative

Salaries and related taxes 205,508 185,152
Office supplies and other 3,194 849

Occupancy 24,306 25,520
Recovery of bad debts (400) (3,129)
Insurance 2,092 2,277
Depreciation 549 616

Total general and administrative 235.249 211.285

S 4.487.015 $2,899,888

-12-



DocuSign Envelope ID; OCAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-D888C190DAB7

DocuSIgn Envelope 10: F012A2CA-A4E3-40EA-B497-C9461A04F592

FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

9. Concentrations of Credit Risk

From time-to-time, the Foundation's total cash deposits exceed the federally insured limit. The
Foundation has not incurred any losses and does not expect any in the future.

10. Fair Value Measurement

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic
820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value
in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset
or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.
FASB ASC topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobsen/able inputs when measuring fair
value.

The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use In pricing an asset or liability.

The Foundation's investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are considered
Level l.

.11. Coronavirus Disease

In response to the Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19). local. U.S.. and world governments have
encouraged self-isolation to curtail the spread of the global pandemic by mandating the temporary
shut-down of business in mariy sectors and imposing [imitations on travel and the size and duration
of group meetings. Most sectors are experiencing disruption to business operations and may feel
further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement, volatility in Investment returns, and
reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented uncertainty surrounding the duration of the
pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and any further government actions to mitigate
them. Accordingly, while management cannot quantify the financial and other impacts to the
Foundation as of June 10. 2021, management believes that a material impact on the Foundation's
financial position and results of future operations is reasonably possible.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

The Foundation has entered into a five year cooperative agreement with the U.S. Department of
Heailh and Human Services. Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) to
provide disbursement support, based on an aliocation methodoiogy using hospitai types of
specialty hospitals, critical access hospitals and prospective payment system hospitals and tertiary
hospitai. The ASPR funds are passed through the Foundation to hospitals in supporting expenses
related to their response to COVID-19 in New Hampshire. Allocations vary based on the type of
hospital. A total of 25 Association member hospitals have accepted the allocations as
subrecipients.
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BOARD OF DIREaORS 2021

Jay Couture, Chair

SujS Mooney, MD, Vice Chair

Stephen Ahnen, Secretary / Treasurer

Peter Ames, e* offtclo

Kris Hering, RN, Immediate Past Chair

George Biike, MD

Scott Coiby

Deb Broadhead, RN

Lauren Collins-Ciine

iocelyn Capie, MO

James Culhane

Mike Oeceiie

Sally Kraft, MD

Betsey Rhynhan

Jeremy Roberge, CPA

Jeff Scionti

Ed Shanshaia

Helen Taft

Susan Walsh

Andrew Watt, MD

President and CEO, Seacoast Mental Health Center

President and CEO, Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital

President, NH Hospital Association

Executive Director, Foundation for Healthy Communities

Chief Nursing Officer, Speare Memorial Hospital

Chief Quality and Value Officer, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

President, Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital

Director, Healthcare Management, Anthem

Director of Communications, Catholic Medical Center

CMO, Interim CEO, Valley Regional Hospital

President and CEO, Lake Sunapee Visiting Nurses Association

Dean, UNH Manchester

Vice President of Population Health, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health

Vice President, Population Health, Concord Hospital.

President and CEO, Muggins Hospital

President and CEO, Parkland Medical Center

CEO, Ammonoosuc Community Health Services

Former Executive Director, Families First

Strategic Business Lead, NH, Harvard Pilgrim Health Care

ClO, Southern New Hampshire Medical Center
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Beth Gustafson

Wheeler

Profile Summary

• Work with New Hampshire's non-profit communin' hospitals to advance population health efforts including
building collaborative opportunities with internal, communit)' and statewide partners.

•  Sucecssful publie health professional with 29 years of experience in building healthy environments where people
live, learn, work and play.

•  Strong skills in facilitation, partnership building, community assessment and strategic planning,

•  lExpcricnccd in evaiuadng health improvement strategics using qualitative and quantitadvc measurement pracdccs.

•  Guided New Hampshire communiucs in thc planning and implementation of health improvement strategics In
the areas of heart disease, diabetes prevention, and obcsit}'.

Experience

1/03 -.present:

4/02- 12/02:

1/97 -6/00:

Foundation for Healthy Communities, Concord, NH
Dinctor of Population Htallb

•  Provide leadership and technical assistance to NHs non-profir communirt' hospitals to assess
current populadon health efforts, icicndfy opportunides for advancement, and build collaboradvc
partnerships to ensure efficient and impactful investments in populadon health.

• Work with healthcare systems and communit)- organizations to foster connections and shared
learning to improve the health and wcllbeing of NH residents.

•  Convene hospital community benefit professionals and lead projects to improve the cffccuvcncss
and efficiency of communit)' benefit reporting and investments in NH.

•  Conduct environmental, system and policy assessments for communities and organizations to guide
strategic direction for hcalili improvement efforts.

•  Determine baseline measures of key health indicators and establish measurement practices.
• Managed the Healthy Eating Active Living (HFiAL) NH communit)' grant program, including •

technical assistance and grant rcquircmcncs for HEAL's 4 regional and 4 community inidadvcs.
•  Planned and facilitated community forums and focus groups as part of HEAL NH's communit)'-

based participator)' assessment and planning processes.
•  Initiated and managed the NH CATCH Kuds Club Project, spreading the project to over 130 out-of-

school organizadons and sites in 7 years.

•  Developed and implemented environment and policy assessment and planning tools for out of
school organizadons, resulting in 98% of sites making 4+ environmental or policy improvements.

•  Directed the Community Prcvcndon and Treatment Inidauvc focused on building a community
health model to improve access to prevention and treatment scn'ices for cardiovascular disease,
diabetes, and childhood obesity. Model implemented in a total of 17 NH communities.

•  Assisted primat)' care practices in qualit)- improvement projects rcladng to the dcvciopmcnt of
office-based systems, tools, and evaluation methods for chronic disease conditions.

Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield of New Hampshire^ Manchester, NH
Senior Healthcare Consultant

•  Collaborated with administrators and clinical staff to develop a diabetes management initiative.
•  Developed, analyzed and presented healthcare data reports to medical and administrative staff.

• Worked with internal staff to address healthcare access issues in the state.

Disease Management I Prevention Specialist
• Worked with primar)' care physicians and staff to improve prevention screening rates.
•  Developed and evaluated cardiovascular disease health nianagcment programs.
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Beth Gustafson

Wheeler

Resume

Page 2

8/00 - 4/02: Plymouth State College, Univcrsit)' System of New Hampshire, Plymouth, NH
Wtlhess Ctnter Dirtdor

•  Initiated and chaired the Whole Health Team, a multi-department team dedicated to improving the
health of Plymouth State College students.

•  Developed, promoted, and implemented health education programs for PSC srudcnts.
•  Trained and supcrs'iscd student educators in group facilitation and education.

•  Adjunct faculty member, Department of Human Health and Performance.

9/95- 5/97: Matthew Thornton Health Plan, Bedford, NH
Worksite Heahb Promotion Sfxciolisl

•  Consulted with corporate accounts on employee health improvement issues providing stratcg)'
development and implementation to reduce medical loss ratios and contain health care costs.

•  Planned, promoted, and performed health risk screenings and health education programming;
•  Evaluated health programs targeted at employer groups and members.
•  Supervised team of per diem clinical and educational staff.

9/94 - 9/95: University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Graduate Assistant

•  Coordinated the University of New Hampshire Phase III Cardiac Rehabilitation Program.
•  Instructed fitness classes and perfomied cholesterol, EKG, and exercise tolerance testing.

Education

Masters of Science in Kinesiolog)': Univcrs.ir)' of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, 1996. Thesis Research Project: H/jA
volume versus low volume resistance esenise: The effects ofa sinffe session on plasma lipid and lipoprotein parameters.

Bachelors of Science in Communit)- Health: Plymouth State College, Plymouth, NH, 1990.-

Certifications and Trainings

•  Communit)* Benefit Specialist Ccriificatc, Community Benefit Connect, 2021
•  Population Health Action Communit)', team participant, Institute for Healthcare ImprovcnKnt, 2020-21
•  Certified Trainer: CATCH Kids Club, a physical activity and nutrition program, 2009-present

•  Health Impact /\ssessment Training, Manchester Health Department, October 2010

Awards:

•  High Five Award, NH Recreation and Park Associadon, May 2010
•  Outstanding Achievement Award, NH Governor's Council on Physical Fitness and Health, May 2010

Professional AfTiIiations

•  Associadon for Community Health Improvement Member 2017-prcsent

•  NH Public Health Associadon Member: 2014-present

•  Concord Boys & Girls Club Program Committee 2011-2013

•  Appalachian Trail Conference member 2007- present

References available upon request
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Gregory J. Vasse

Career Experience

FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES (09/19/2011 - present)
Program Support and/or Leadership:
Rural Quality Improvement Netwoiic, SHIP & FLEX Grants
Hospital Improvement & Innovation Network Partnership for Patients
Eastern US Quality Improvement Collaborative / HQIC - CMS
New Hampshire Peer Review Network

AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS BIOMEDICAL SERVICES (2003-2006)
Senior Vice President (2004-2006)
Area Vice President North Central US (2003-2004)

SOUTHEASTERN MICHIGAN BLOOD SERVICES REGION / American Red Cross

Chief Executive Officer (1998-2002)

Concord, NH

HENRY FORD HEALTH SYSTEM

COO Henry Ford Health System / Eastern Region
President 8t CEO Henry Ford Cottage Hospital

(1986-1998)
(1994-1998)
(1988-1998)

COTTAGE HEALTH SERVICES (1977-1985)
VP Operations / VP Planning & Marketing / Asst Admini^ator

Washington, DC

Detroit, MI

Detroit, MI

Grosse Polnto, MI

Education

CORNELL / S.C. JOHNSON COLLEGE OF BUSINESS - MBA

CORNELL / SLOAN PROGRAM - HOSPITAL & HEALTH SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
CORNELL / COLLEGE OF ARTS & SCIENCES - BA BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES (MICROBIOLOGY)

HARVARD / JFK SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT • PARTNERS IN ORGANIZATIONAL LEADERSHIP

Volunteer Positions

NEW ENGUND RURAL HEALTH ROUND TABLE

Member Board of Directors, New Hampshire Representative

DARTMOUTH HITCHCOCK MEDICAL CENTER

Emergency Department Volunteer

(2015-2020)

( 2011-2012)

UNITED METHODIST RETIREMENT COMMUNIHES (2002-2006)

Member Board of Directors, Executive Committee and Chairman of the Quality Committee

Newfletd, ME

Lebanon, NH

Chelsea, MI

Military Service

us NAVY HOSPITAl CORPSMAN SECOND CLASS PETTY OFFICER (1970-1974)

Naval Training Center, Great Lakes Illinois, Hospital Corps School
National Naval Medical Center, Bethesda Maryland, Haematology Oncology Clinic
Naval Training Center, Batnbridge Maryland, Dispensary Oinical Laboratory
Kirk Army Hospital, Aberdeen Proving Ground Maryland, Clinical Microbiology Laboratory
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PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Reliable, collaborative, innovative and results driven quality, patient safety and performance improvement

individual with 10+ years of experience in leading and implementing projects of various size and scope.

Particularly successful in taking unstructured or complex projects, systems, and guiding them from start to

finish. Recognized ability to maintain an organized and structured work environment. Strong communication,

team building and conflict-resolution skills.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Senior Director of Rural Quality Improvement Foundation for Healthy Communities Get 2021 -Present

Support Critical Access Hospitals to address access to care in rural and medically underserved areas of
New Hampshire

Manage Small Rural Hospital Improvement Grant Program (SHIP)

Manage Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility (FLEX) Program

Manage Eastern US Quality Collaborative Initiative (EQIC)

Patient Safety. Director

Ethics Compliance Coordinator

Parkland Medical Center } Derry, NH Dec 2019 • Present

Get 2020- Present

Implement and evaluate annual Clinical Safety Improvement Program

Implement, analyze and present AHRQ Patient Safety Culture Survey results to Board of Trustees. Senior

Leaders, Medical Executive Committee and Department Leaders. Collaborate with Department Leaders

and frontline staff to develop meaningful and sustainable improvement plans

Facilitate root cause analyses on reportable and non-reportable events determined by tracking and

trending near miss events

Develop department level Patient Safety Champions support structure including education in Just
Culture, High Reliability, Psychological Safety, TeamSTEPPS

Develop, implement and evaluate annual Patient Safety and Risk Management Plan and perform

ongoing assessment of Patient Safety Program

Manage event reporting system to include investigation, trending and identification of opportunities for
improvement

Facilitate monthly multidisciplinary Patient Safety Committee

Facilitate TeamSTEPPS training program

Perform ongoing assessments to improve patient safety; review patient safety information from

aggregated data reports to prioritize organizational patient safety activities; i.e., falls, pressure related
injuries, hospital acquired infections

Facilitate Joint Commission survey readiness

Conduct new hire staff and provider education related to patient safety initiatives, event reporting and

teamwork principles

Manage medical malpractice and general liability claims

Supervise of Quality RN in the management of patient complaint and grievance process

Review and revise hospital ADA policies, processes and procedures to ensure compliance with

Americans with Disabilities Act

•  Conducted employee education related to non-discrimination and reasonable accommodations
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Operational Excellence Specialist Parkland Medical Center | Derry, NH Jul 2017 - Dec 2019

•  Introduced a new, comprehensive approach to Joint Commission survey readiness with system and

individual tracers for each department

•  Conducted 30+ survey tracers in collaboration with department leaders and developed survey follow up

action plans based on tracer findings and achieved Joint Commission reaccreditation with zero patient

care findings

•  Conducted proactive risk assessments and developed plans for eliminating/mitigating ligature risks in

the Emergency Department, Behavioral Health Unit and Inpatient Units

•  Designed and implemented review tool to monitor the safety, appropriateness and necessity of

restraint/seclusion use

•  Actively managed the process for attaining first time Joint Commission Certifications for Total Knee

Replacement, Total Hip Replacement and Spine Surgery programs which included development of

Performance Improvement Plan, Scope of Service, determination of process and performance

improvement metrics and reporting structure

•  Provided analysis and trending reports of readmission and emergency department frequent user data to
Leadership and external stakeholders including local provider practices, home health agencies and

nursing homes to target avoidable readmissions and overutilization of emergency department resources

•  Redesigned process for Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation and Focused Professional Practice

Evaluation

•  Provided support and knowledge to Patient Safety Director for risk related issues

•  Provided support and knowledge regarding Joint Commission and CMS requirements related to patient

complaints and grievances to Patient Safety RN

•  Oversaw data management and submission of quality data to the Foundation for Healthy Communities

through the Hospital Improvement and Innovation Network and evaluation of Quality Trends analysis.

VBP Program, HCA Reduction Program Analysis and Medicare Quality Programs Overview Report to

identify opportunities and performance improvement objectives

•  Facilitated successful submission of CMS validation templates and requested medical records for

Hospital Inpatient Quality Reporting (IQR) Program Fiscal Year 2020

Patient Liaison Catholic Medical Center, j Manchester. NH Sept 2016-Jul 2017

•  Management of patient complaint and grievance process which included analysis of data resulting in

performance and process improvement initiatives

•  Analysis of Press Ganey data/reports to define improvement objectives and develop process

improvement action plans

•  Facilitated DISC profile workshops for over 200 nursing staff

•  Facilitated AIDET principles training module for all hospital staff
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Patient Safety Officer

Quaiity and Risk Manager

Corporate Compliance Officer

Cobleskill Regional Hospital | Coblesklll, NY Jul 2014-Sept 2016

Managed Patient Safety, Risk Management, Quality, Compliance and Medical Staff Programs
Developed, implemented and evaluated yearly Patient Safety and Quality Performance Improvement
Plan

Supervised Data and Process Analyst, infection Control/Disaster Management Coordinator and Medical
Staff Coordinator

Analyzed and presented AHRQ Patient Safety Culture Survey results to Board of Trustees, Senior
Leaders, Medical Executive Committee and Department Leaders. Collaborated with Department
Leaders and frontline staff to develop meaningful and sustainable improvement plans in the areas of
teamwork within units, teamwork across units and handoffs & transitions

Facilitated FMEAs, Implemented action plans and monitored measures of effectiveness

Facilitated root cause analyses on reportable and non-reportable events determined by tracking and
trending near miss events

Tracked and trended incident reports to Identify performance improvement actions; submitted reports
to Patient Safety Organization as patient safety work product

Participated in several Lean process improvement initiatives resulting in a decrease of 44 minutes In
admit decision to time of departure from ED for admitted patients; improved outpatient flow for
orthopedic/radiology patients and recognized $10,000 In savings through the implementation of a '
push/pull supply process. Lean Six Sigma Green Belt certified
Successfully facilitated Department of Health and CMS surveys that resulted in no findings or statements
of deficiency

Analyzed quality and performance data and prepared and presented statistical reports to Quality
Oversight Committee, Medical Executive Committee, Board of Trustees and other committees as

requested

Organized hospital wide education on Joint Commission standards to ensure regulatory readiness for
annual accreditation survey

Facilitated policy review and revision improvement initiative which resulted in consolidation, deletion
and revision of over 1,000 policies, procedures and protocols

Developed and facilitated AIDET principles training module for all hospital staff
Managed Press Ganey patient satisfaction survey including leadership, staff and provider education on
survey questions, analysis of data/reports and development, execution and monitoring of performance
Improvement projects

Managed Medical Staff credentialing program

Managed Compliance Program which Included development of yearly work plan, audits and evaluations

Manager of Legal Affairs

Patient Relations

Bassett Medical Center | Cooperstown, NY Jan 2009-Jul 2014

•  Supervised Patient Representative Service Coordinator

•  Developed Patient Safety Core Curriculum for Medical and Surgical Residency Program
•  Fielded and resolved risk calls and concerns from patients and family members, frontline staff and

medical providers
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Processed, tracked and trended incident reports through online incident reporting system and made

recommendations for actions and improvements

Managed sentinel adverse events, including State reporting, root cause analysis, plans of correction and

monitoring for compliance of implemented actions

Managed network wide medical malpractice and general liability claims and lawsuits for hospitals and

providers •

Implemented a comprehensive risk management educational program through Medical Risk

Management (MRM), LLC to all employed physicians, non-physician clinicians, residents and nursing
staff focused on comrriunication, electronic health record and documentation

Processed and prepared responses to CMS, Department of Health and Joint Commission complaints and

surveys

Co-facilitated CMS EMTALA survey that resulted in statement of deficiency requiring development of
plan of correction. Implementation of corrective actions, staff and provider education, monitoring for

compliance and summary status reports to Board of Trustees

Facilitated Joint Commission required FMEAs, implemented action plans and monitored measures of

effectiveness

Managed all aspects of the patient complaints and grievances program. Successfully resolved over 2,000

complaints and grievances. Worked closely with the Medical Director to resolve complex quality of care

and physician behavior issues

EDUCATION

Master of Health Leadership

Bachelor of Science, Community and Health Services

Western Governors University | Salt Lake City, UT

Empire State College | Saratoga, NY

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

> Certified Professional in Patient Safety (CPPS), Certified Board for Professionals in Patient Safety

> Certified Professional in Healthcare Risk Management (CPHRM), American Hospital Association

> Certified Professional in Healthcare Quality (CPHQ), National Association of Healthcare Quality

> Lean Six Sigma Green Belt Certification, SStgma
> TeamSTEPPS trained
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Foundation for Healthy Living
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hoispotting Project

Key Personnel-Salary

Budget Period
07/1/2021-

06/30/2022

Name Job Title Salary
07/1/202 Ir

06/30/2022

% Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid frotri

this Contract

Beth Gustafson

Wheeler

Director, Total Population
Health

60,913.53 50% 30,456.77

Greg Vasse Director, Rural Quality
Improvement Network
(7/1/21- 10/31/2021)

39,316.90 10% 3,931.69

LucllynValtin SR Director Rural Quality.
Improvement (1 1/1/2021-
06/30/22)

70,000.00 10% 7,000.00

Total 41,388.46

Budget Period
07/1/2022

05/31/2023

Name Job Title Salary
07/1/2022

05/31/2023

% Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Beth Gustafson -

Wheeler

Director, Total Population
Health

57,490.83 50% 28,745.42

Luellyn Vallin SR Director Rural Quality .
Improvement

97,624.98 10% 9,762.49

Total 38,507.91
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STATEOF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OK HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DI m/0/^ OF PUBLIC HEA L TH SER VICES

29 HAZENDRIV'E, CONCORD. NH 03301
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Fev: 603-27i-4a27 TOO Accrts: l*800-73S-2964

\nvw.dhhj.nh.50v

April12. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Heallh and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a contract with Foundation for Healthy Communities .(VC#154533).
Concord. NH in the amount of $231,997 to assist and support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire
small rural hospitals with implementing activities provided by the Small Rural Hospital
Improvement Program <SHIP) Grant, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years,
effective June 1. 2021 or upon Governor and Council approval, v/hichever is later, through May
31. 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in Stale Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price timltation and encumbrances between stale fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

.05.95-90-901010-2219QOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POLICY &
PERFORMANCE. SMALL HOSPITAL IMPROVEMENT

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
90076001 $9,667

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
90076001 $116,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
90076001 $106,330

Total $231,997

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small Rural
Hospitals with implementing the activities, chosen by the hospitals as a group from the menu of
grant activities, provided annually by the Small Rural Hospital Improvement Program Grant.

Approximately 150 New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals staff will be senred from June
1,2021 to May 31. 2023. . .

Tht litporlmcnt of HeoUh ond Htimon Scruic<$'Misihn is 10 Join corttmiinilios and families
in pfwiding oppofUinitiet for citizens to acritcvc heallh end indtpendenee.
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The Contractor will support and assist the Small Rural Hospitals with grant
activities that Include, joining accountable care organizations, participating In shared savings
programs, and purchasing health information technology, to comply with quality Improvement
activities, which may include advancing patient care information, promoting interoperability, and
payment bundling.

For grant years 2021 and 2022, the New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals will continue
to participate in the Medicare Bootcamp billing, coding trainings and the Population Health and
Hotspotting Project conducted over the last two years. The Population Health and Holspotting
Project utilizes hospital inpatient and outpatient data gathered by the Division of Public Health
Services as well as several National datasets to examine where certain physical health and social
determinants of health risk factors are clustered in hospital seoi'lce areas.

•The Contractor will work with the Small Rural Hospitals to Identify priority areas, as defined
by data analysis provided by the State, and connect Smalt Rural Hospitals with State and
community resources to support high needs areas. The Contractor will provide community benefit
profiles for each Small Rural Hospital in order that the hospitals can optimize their investments to
the highest priorities in their service areas.

The Contractor will conduct at least one but not more than two (2) Medicare Bootcamp
billing and coding trainings each grant year to help support the revenue streams of New
Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals to ensure maximal reimbursement for services provided. In
addition, the Contractor will work with the New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals to padicipate in
Population Health Peer Groups to share besi practices, learn tools to create/promote population
health initiatives, and share overall strategies related to population health.

The Department will monitor contracled services using" the following performance
measures:

•  50% of participants report making a change or planning to make a change in billing
processes as a result of attendance at Medicare Bootcamp.

♦  50% of Small Rural Hospitals engage in the Population Health Peer Group, through
recruitment efforts of the Contractor.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for-Appiications (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from 1/22/2021
through 2/17/2021. The Department received one (-1) response that was reviewed and scored by
a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for gp to two (2) additional years, coniingent.upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request thirteen (13) New Hampshire
Small Rural Hospitals locations will be ill-equipped to handle the continuous changes in Medicare
billing and coding reimbursement, resulting in lost revenue and greater financial risk. Additionally,
the Small Rural Hospitals will not receive Ihe training needed to give hospital sitaff the tools to
manage billing and coding and to ensure financial health of the Institution. Finally, should the
hotspotting project not be funded, hospitals will not have the capacity and/or skills needed to
analyze health and disease data to target areas of high need.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0CAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-D888C190DAB7

His Excellency. Governor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
ond t^e Honoreble Council

Pago 3 of 3

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.301. FAIN # H3HRH00028

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully 9ut>mitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
wtj Commlsslorwr
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts 8i Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Small Rural Hospital Populstion Health
end Hotspetting Pre}eci

RF* Hsma

BlOder Name

Foundation for Healthy Communities

RFA-2021-DPHS^SMALL

2.

3.0

^'1
5.^

Oq

7. n

Rf A Number

Patt/fali

Maximum

Points

- Actual

Points

200 tso

200

200

Reviewer Names

NIa Hayu. PS tV

JennBer Howfey. Pfprm. Ptamtr It!

Whitney Hammond. Admih.!!

ASu Onr^. Admin. I

5.

6.

7.

fi.

•9.
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Subjcci:_Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspoiting Project (RFA-202I-DPHS-06-SMALL-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its ailachmenis shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, conndcntiol or proprietary must

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

aCRIlEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State AgctKy Nome

New Hampshire Oepanmeni of Henlih and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Foundation for Healthy Communities

1.4 Contractor Address

125 Airpon Rd.
Concord, NH 03301,

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)225-0900

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-901010-

22190000

1.7 Completion Date

May 31,2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$231,997

1.9 Conirociing Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. While, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.ll Contractor Signature

1  Date: 4/20/2021

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Peter Ames Executive Oirecior

1.13 StaTe^iKgcncy^i^haiurc

pS. D..: V20/20a
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Lisa M. Morris Director, Division of Public

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Dcparlmehl of Administration. Division of Personnel ///applicable)

Dy: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

^  4/30/2021

1.17 Appro^aH5y4HE®?WWS/fior and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: C&C Meeting Date:

HeaUl

Page I of4

—w

PA
Contraclor Initials

Date
4/20/2021
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaie of New
Hampshire, aciing through ihc agency idcniificd in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor ideniiHed in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perfomt. and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, Identined and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated
herein by reference ( 'Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 NotNvithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the opprovol of the OoN-ernor and
C.xecutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe panies hcrcunder. shall
become effective on the date the Governor and E.xecutive
Council approve (his Agreenteni as indicated in block 1.17,
unlciu no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become cfTcctivc on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTcciive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the GfTcciivc Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional nature of agreement.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of paymcm.t hcrcunder, arc
contingent upon (he availability and continued oppropristion of
funds alTcctcd by any state or federal legislative or c*ccuii\'c
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hcrcunder in c.tcess of such available appropriated furKls. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Slate shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or lerrhinaiion.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other,
account or source'to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
cs'cni funds in (hat Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more-panicularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to Ihc Contractor for oil
expenses, of svhatcvcr nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

cornpensation to the Conlrocior for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State rescr\-cs the right to ofTsci from any omoums
oiheru'ise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision In this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding une.xpec(ed circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments ouihorized. or actually made
hcrcunder, exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with (he performance of the Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duly upon the
Contractor, Including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws, in addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal e.secuiive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State Of the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
propcny laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
di.scriminaic again.sl employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination,
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States

■ access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rule.s, regulations
and orders, and (he covenants, lcrn]i.s and conditions of this
Agreement.

7, PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own e.xpense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
nil personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to^^
perform the Services, and shall be properly liccn.sed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable lows.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of si.x (6) months after- the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged iii 0 combined elTon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTiccr specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's reprcscmaiivc. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

[51
Page 2 or4

Contractor initials

Date
■9/20/2021
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of ihc foHouiog octs or omissions of ihc
Comr&cior shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Eveni
of Defnuli"):
8.1.1 failure- to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any o«hcr covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or atl, of the following action.*:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wriiien noiice'spccifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from tlK
date of the notice; and ifihe Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days aflcr giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and' suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from ihe date ofsuch notice until such time as the State
determines thai the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give ihe Contractor a wrltien notice specifying the Eycni of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Coniracior any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Dcfaull; arid/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfaull, irem the Agreement as breached, icrminale the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Slate to enforce any provisions hcrcofafler
any Event of Dcfaull shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Dcfaull. No c.sprcss failure lo enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any funher or other Event of
Default on ihe part of ihe Coniracior.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Stale may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by ihiny (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the Stale is e.vercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the eveni of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Coniracior shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting OITiccr, not later ihan fifteen (15) days after ihc date
of termination, a repon ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, lo
and ir>clt}ding the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be Identical (oihose of any Final Report described in ihe attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Commctor
shall, within IS days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State o Transition Plan for scrx'tces under the

Agreement.

10. data/access/confidentialitv/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, (he word "data" shall mean all-
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, Ihis
Agreement, including, but not limited to, atl studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, xndco
recordings, pictoriol reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
rcpr^cntalions, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documenis, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which hns been received from
the State or purcha.sed with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of (his Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA -
chapter 91 -A or other e.xistifig law. Disclosure of data requires
priorwriticn approval of the State.

11. COiNTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In Ihc

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is rteither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
orficers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at.least fifteen (IS) days prior to
(he assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its Bffiliaics, become.* the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50V#) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of oil or sub-stanlially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Scrx'ice.s shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subconira'cts and &s.*ignmeni
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement lo which it is itol a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATIOiN. Unless Otherwise c.xcmpicd by law,
(he Contractor shall indemnify arxd hold hannles.s the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property dathages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
(he State, Its officers or employees, which arise out oWqc^hifh
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omisspnyif'tl)^
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Coniracior. or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
ncgligCTKC, reckless or inicniionQl conduct. The State shall not
be liable for ony costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph I i. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

M. INSURANCE.

14.) The Contractor shall, ot its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, ond shall require ony
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance again.si all claim.s
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in omounis of not
less than SI,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or e.tccss; and
i 4.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering alt property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by in.surers licensed in the Stale of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Coniraciing OITiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceniricate(.s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer idcntincd
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtincaie(s) of insurance
for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no.
later than ten (10) days prior to the e-spiralion date of each
insurance policy. The ctnificate{.5) of insurance and any
renewals ihcrcofshall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, ceniHcs
and xvarranis that the Contractor is in compliance with or e.scmpt
from, the requiremenisofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ( "If'orkcrs'
Conipensailon ").
15.2 To the e.xtcni the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undenake pursuant lo'ihis
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation.premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might orise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connectio.n with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered orgi%'cn ei ihe lime
of mailing by cenificd mail, postage prepaid. In a United States
Post Office addre.ssed to ihe panics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be omendcd, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in wriiing sigrtcd by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such omendmeni,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and E.xecuilvc Couixcil of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Stale law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, inierpreicd and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and ihcir respective successors
ond assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the uDrding
chosen by the panics to c.xprcss their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any pany.
Any actions arising oui of this Agreement shall be brought and

.maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
e.xclusive jurisdiction (hereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the c%'cm of o conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or aiiachmems and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit'any third panics and this Agreement .shall not be
construed to confer any such beneni.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purpo.ses only, and the words coniained therein
shall in no xray be held to explain, modify, amplify or oid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions.sei fonh in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. $EVER/\BILiTV. In the event any ofthc provisions of this
Agreement are held by fl court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any stale or federal taw, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and efTeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
c.xccuicd in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an-original, constitutes the entire ogrccmeni and
understanding between the parlies, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Smalt Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows;

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the

Slate of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective upon G&C
approval or June 1. 2021 {'Effective Date"), whichever is later.

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as fallows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up io two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon' satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of Ihe
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12. Assigriment/Delegation/Subconlracts. is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor,
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and lake corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide,the Stale with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

—0)
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall assist and support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small
Rural Hospitals (SRHs) to implement the activities the hospitals choose as a
group from the menu of grant activities provided annually l^y the Small Rural
Hospital Improvement Program Grant, which may include, but are not limited
to:

1.1.1. Joining accountable care organizations (ACOs).

1.1.2. Participating in shared savings programs.

1.1.3. Purchasing health information technology, to comply with quality
improvement activities, which may. include advancing patient care
information, promoting interoperability, and payment bundling.

1.2. The Contractor shall engage the thirteen (13) New Hampshire SRHs in order to
identify how small rural facilities can target their services to the areas of highest
need. The Contractor shall:

1.2.1. Facilitate a peer-learning group of SRHs with the goal of sharing lessons
learned and current efforts to promote population health.

1.2.2. Support hospitals in completing the Pathways to Population Health
Compass Assessment to obtain a baseline of where their current
population health' efforts are along the continuum.

1.2.3. Analyze the community benefit activities completed by the SRHs and
match expenditures to the most recent Community Health Needs
Assessments to create an Investment portfolio for each SRH.

1.2.4. Assist SRHs with identifying priority areas, as supported by data reports
issued by the Bureau of Public Health Statistics and Informatics (BPHSI)
which uses aggregated data publicly available on the State of New .
Hampshire Web-Based Interactive System for Direction and Outcome
Measures (WISDOM) portal, and connecting the SRHs with State and
community resources to accomplish identified goals.

1.2.5. Liaise with the Department's DPHS Rural Health Manager to find
resources available for initiatives that SRHs are interested in

implementing:

1.2.6. Identify Community Based Organizations that may support SRH
activities.

1.2.7. Appoint a Director of Population Health for this project who is available
to support SRHs and answer questions throughout the project period.

1.2.8. Host a monthly gathering of SRH population health manager$_e^r
virtually or in-person. In order to :

RFA-202t-OPHSK)6-SMALl-O1 Foundaiion lof HwHhy Communlitos ConifBCtor Inlilals
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EXHIBIT B

1.2.8.1. Provide networt(ing opportunities.

1.2.8.2. Provide resources for hospitals ready for the next phase of
the project, as defined.in the work plan.

1.2.8.3. Share success stories and lessons learned from those who

have successfully implemented initiatives.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all contract activities are pre-approved by the
Department's Rural Health and Primary Care Section (RHPCS).

1.4. The Contractor shall coordinate a minimum of one (1) Medicare Bootcamp per
year, not to exceed two (2) Medicare Bootcamps per year. The Contractor shall
ensure:

1.4.1. Medicare Bootccamp curriculum supports the SRH revenue streams by
ensuring maximal reimbursement for services is obtained'.

1.4.2. SRHs are aware of scholarship funds available to support staff
attendance at Medicare Bootcamp trainings.

1.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to manage a scholarship
program that promotes Medicare Bootcamp attendance for SRH staff.

1.6. The-Contractor shall maintain a Medicare Bootcamp attendance list that
includes telephone and email contact information for each attendee, which must

' be given to the Departmenl's RHPCS no later than two (2) weeks following each
training.

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure Medicare Bootcamp participants are made aware
of and are encouraged to complete a Departmenl-issued evaluation survey and
document if the participants would like to be contacted via phone or sent an
online survey.

1.8. The Contractor shall meet, in a frequency determined by the Contractor and
SRHs, with a representative group of Chief Financial Officers for the SRHs to
plan aspects of learning sessions, which include but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Major objectives of the Bootcamps.

1.8.2. Recruitment of participants for the sessions.

1.8.3. Organization of all components of the education sessions for delivery.

1.8.4. Creation or selection of learning sessions based on the needs prioritized
by Chief Financial Officers.

1.9. The Contractor shall engage each interested SRH in the Population Health and
Hotspotting Project (PHHP), which utilizes hospital inpatient and outpatient data
provided by the Department as well as several National datasets to examine
v/here certain physical health arid social determinants of health risk factors are
clustered in hospital service areas to improve the health of residents
hospital service area and ensure maximal reimbursement in the tran:
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EXHIBIT B

value-based payments. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are
not limited to:

1.9.1. Completing the Pathways to Populaiion Health Compass Assessment,
created by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement, to assess how the
SRH are supporting population health efforts in their service area. The
Contractor shall ensue the assessment team includes a variety of
stakeholders, which may include but are not limited to:

1.9.1.1. PHHP contact.

1.9.1.2. Staff responsible for Population Health.

1.9.1.3. Community Health Workers/Care Coordinators.

1.9.1.4. Hospital administration.

1.9.1.5. Staff responsible for Community Benefits.

1.9.1.6. Quality improvement staff.

1.9.1.7. Staff responsible for Patient & Family Engagement.

1.9.2. Engaging SRHs to participate in the Population Health Peer Group,
which includes, but is not limited to:

1.9.2.1. Peer-to-peer sharing of best practices.

1.9.2.2. Tools utilized to create/promote population health initiatives.

1.9.2.3. Overall strategies related to population health.

1.9.3. Creating community benefits profiles by outlining:

1.9.3.1. Community investments: •

1.9.3.2. Health disparities identified; and

1.9.3.3. Identification of how hospital investments are addressing
Identified disparities.

1.9.4. Supporting SRHs with identifying goals that advance population health
efforts, by reviewing service area hotspotting analyses from the
Department. The Contractor shall review hoispolting analyses, which
includes but is not limited to;

1.9.4.1. Mapping of aggregate resident data by service area.

1.9.4.2. Heat maps that indicate clusters of population health and
social determinants of health needs in hospital seA^ice
areas.

1.9.4.3. Highlights of the most prevalent needs in hospital service
areas and alignment with community benefit profiles to
indicate opportunities for future investments.
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EXHIBIT B

1.9.5. Assisting with the creation of action plans to address health disparities;
support effective and efficient investments; and improve population
health efforts.

1.9.6. Evaluating the data by:

1.9.6.1. Assisting each hospital in the identification of metrics to
measure progress with population health activities: and

1.9.6.2. Revisiting data at each development meeting with the SRHs
to understand the Impact of population health activities, the
data includes:

1.9.6.2.1. GIS Mapping/Hot-Spotting data;

1.9.6.2.2. Completing and/or reviewing IHI Pathways to
Population Health Compass Assessrhents,
periodically, to measure progress; and

1.9.6.2.3. Community Benefit Profiles and investments.

1.9.7. Acting as the liaison between the Department's DPHS, Bureau of Public
Health Statistics and Informatics (BPHSI) and the SRH(s)

1.9.8. Meeting with hospital leadership to define which member(s) of each
hospital will participate in a learning collaborative for population health
initiatives.

1.9.9. Documenting monthly the number of times:

1.9.9.1. Contact was attempted via telephone.

1.9.9.2. Contact was made via telephone.

1.9.9.3. Meeting was held via telephone.

1.9.9.4. In-person meeting was completed.

1.9.9.5. New hospital representative was recruited for learning
collaborative.

1.9.10. Documenting the number of SRHs that participate in the learning
collaborative meetings, specifying date, time, and participants.

1.9.11. Referring SRHs to resources and programs available to enhance
population health efforts including those available at the Bureau of
Population Health and Community Services and the other Community
Based Organizations to implement and bolster new initiatives.

1.10. Work Plan

1.10.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department to finalize a Work Plan
for year one (1) of the Contract period within thirty (30) day^J,the
Contract effective date.

F?FA-202l-DPHS-06-SMALL-01 Foundatioo fw Hwlihy Commuriiiies Conifsctor iniilols



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0CAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-D888C190DAB7

OocuSign Envelope 10: l9lE666l-7AO9-«317-9B8e-232C$oeOA011

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project
EXHIBIT 8

1.10.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a draft Work Plan for year two
(2) of the contract period no later than ninety (90) days prior to the end
of year one (1) of the Contract period.

1.10.3. The Contractor shall work with the Department to finalize the Work Plan
for year two (2) of the Contract period prior to the start of year two (2).

1.10.4. The Contractor shall ensure work plans are used to confirm progress
toward meeting the performance measures and program objectives.

1.10.5. The Contractor shall provide a final staffing and staffing contingency
plan to the Department no later than five (5) days from the contract
effective dale.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall communicate to the Department's RHPCS through
monthly meetings held in person or with the use of a virtual platform that shall
Include, but is not limited to the following information:

3.1.1. Plans for implementing SHIP menu activities.

3.1.2. Specific activities provided.

3.1.3.' Budget status.

3.1.4. An attendance list for activities held.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure all reports are formatted In a manner that can be
shared directly with the SRHs.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
..annually and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement: _o,
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4.1.1. 50% Of participant's report making a change or planning to make a
change in their billing processes as a result of attendance at Medicare
Bootcamp.

4.1.2. 50% of SRHs engage In the Population Health Peer Group through
recruitment efforts by the Contractor.

4.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a Corrective Action Plan for any
performance measure in Section 4.1 that are not achieved to the Department
on an annual basis

4.3. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate \iVith providers to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.4. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from Contracloits),
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.5. The Department.may identify expectations for active and regular collaboration,
•including key 'performance objectives, in the resulting contract. Where
applicable. Contractor(s) must collect and share data with the Department in a
formal specified by the Department.

4.6. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.7. The Contractor may be required to provide other' key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-levet demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.8. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department In a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a deiailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensuremeaningful access to programs and/or services to individu^T^^^
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limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement. "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the Slate of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United Stales Department of Health' and Human
Services."

5.3.2. -All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the' Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. , Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior v^itten approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to;

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the.Conlracl, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained In accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect at! such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contribi^^s,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or requifed^^

RFA-202»-OPH$4)6-SMALL-01 Fpundalioo lor Keallhy CommunJiies Contractor Wilalj
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the Depar^ent.

6.2. During the term of this Agreernent and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in ihe Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are. to be. performed after the end of the temn of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if. upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain Ihe right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

RFA-2021-OPHS-O8-SMALL-O1 Foufidallen for H«a«hy Cemmuniiies Conlraciw InlltolJ
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by federal funds from the Small Rural Hospital
Improvement" Grant Program, as awarded on December 18. 2020, by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services. CFDA 93.301. FAIN
H3H00028.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subreceipieni, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330,

2.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

2.3. The de minlmis Indirect Cost Rate of 12.5% applies in accordance with
2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance wilh
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
3. Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth {15th) working day of the follovflng month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
■ emailed to DPHSContractBillinQ@dhhs.nh.Qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

6. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and.
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37. Genera) Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8. Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part In the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services. A

RFA-2021-pPHS-06-SMALL-0l Foundation lor Haalihy Commurtliiss Contractor Initials
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10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this,agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited" to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipiient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financiat audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor, shall subrnit an
annual financial audit performed by an Independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it Is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

—OS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certincation:

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the r^ulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100^90, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) (hat is a State
may elect to make one'cediftcation to the Oepartment in each federal riscal year in lieu of cedificates for
eac^ grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a ■ ■
material representation of fact upon'which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or viotation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pieasant'Streel,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a coritroDed substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying (he actions that will be taken egairist employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free.workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in (he workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of (he grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifyirtg the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition ol

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by (he terms of (he statement; and
1.4.2. Notify (he employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than Hve calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notif^ng the agency in writing, within len calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant aclivily the convicted employee was working, unless (he Federal agency

fp/t
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(8) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking on© of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee wtw is so convicted

'  1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to coritinue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3,1.4, VS. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of work done in
conr>ecl(on with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Vendor Name:

DmuSIqaH w-

4/20/2021

5;;;
Title: Executive Director

ExhibK D - CertiftMilon regarding Drug Free Vendor Inlilals
Wofkplaco Reqidremenis 4/20/2021
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor idenliried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101 •121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Comractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT.OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
lemporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tlile IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Slock Grant Program under Tllle XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title (V

The undersigned certifies, to the besi of his or her knowledge'and belief, lhat:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will l>e paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting lo influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, en officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection wiih the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other then Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid lo any person for
Influencing or altenipling lo Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an empbyee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
conlraclor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instruclions. attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certificat/on be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certificallon is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certHicalion Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Tille 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject lo a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

4/20/2021 I
Date

Title:
Executive Director

ExNbii E - Cenirication Regdrdlr>g Lobbytng Vendor IrHiislt
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified (n Sections 1.11 and V12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the,
certification set out below. .

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not i^ecessahly result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide ihe certification. The certificalion or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction.' If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certificalion. in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS ager^cy to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that .its certificalion was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction.' "debarred." "suspended." *if\eligible,* "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal." and"
"voluntarily excluded." as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions-.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of rewrds
In order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andi'^

itI 91«Exhibit F - Ccn<rc0l>on Regarding Debarment. Suspeniion Contraclor Initials
And Other Rssponsibilliy Mailers 4/20/2021
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inlormation of a particlpanl is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHMS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended." proposed for debermeni. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; '
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicied of or had

a dvil judgmeni rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embcMlemenl. theft", forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false slalemenis, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are riot presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this applicalion/proposal had one or nnore public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submilting this'lov^r tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl. declared ineligible', or

voluntarily excluded from partldpalion In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier partidpanl further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause enUiled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions arKi in all solidtalions for lower iier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

• 0«<vSiOK«4 V]r;

4/20/2021

Date

TiUe:
Executive Director

[pA
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identirted in Sections l.tl and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Controctor will comply, and will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control ar>d Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Sale Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminaltng, either In employment practices or in the delivery of sendees or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opponunily Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), v/hich prohibits recipients of Federal Hnancial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or beneHts. In any program or activity;

• the Americans wilh Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities ir> employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1581,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Oiscriminatlon Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discriminalion on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Oeparlment of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 36 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations • Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistlebiower proleclions 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Autfiorizalion
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistlebiower Protections, which protects empbyees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as idenliried in Sections l.t 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. 6y signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name:

by:

A/20/2021

'OMtfllQiiM 07:

Date Name: Peter Ames
Title. Executive Director

Exhibit G
Cootfsctw Inllltlj
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or fibrary services to children under the age of 18. il the services are furided by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, lacilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of t994.

Contractor Nanne:

•DMwtlefMdky;

4/20/2021

Dale Name: Feter Ames
Title, executive Director

f^/i
Eihibk H - C«rtiric*tJon Regarding Contractor Inhiab^
Environmental Tobacco Smoke 4/20/2021
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section ̂  .3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and.164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the Stale of New Harppshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Seclion 164.501.

e. "Data Aoareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
SectionlB4.50l.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TilleXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendmenis thereto.

i. 'Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term 'indivlduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv^Ct^aL, ̂
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 * ExNbll I Cofttraclof —
Heaiiri msurtnce Ponabliity Act
Business Associate Asreemeni 4/20/2021
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Exhibit 1

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

in. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disctosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees^and agents, shall not use, disctose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
t. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
It. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of .the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose-any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disctosi^e_and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bustf^/\

3/2014 • ExhlWil Cont/ocror WUals
Health Insurance Portability Act
Busioesa Associale Agreemcni 4/20/2021
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to (he Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the at>ove situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including (he
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. • Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered.Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivifig^^^

1/2014 ExhibIM Conlraclof
Insurince Ponability Act

Business Astoclaie Agreement 4/20/2021
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P*37} of (his Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record-
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for.an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
' directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to'Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would-cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law arid notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business

3/2014 EkMWH Contraaof Inlliali^
Heahh inswinca Poflabiiity M
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitalion may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 154.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,

-  to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein'as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach.within a timeframe specifted by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity.
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as

. amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges thai it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interpretation. The parlies agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be r
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 • ExNbitl Conlfactof liVltels^' ■ ■ ■
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e. SegreQation. if any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
pefson(s) Of circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e arKj Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Depanmenl of Health and Human Services Foundation for Healthy Comiaunities

Contractor

Signature o7 Authorized Representative ^l^alure oT'Authorized Representative
Lisa M. Morris peter Ames

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director, Division of Public Health srvcs.

Executive oi rector

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

4/20/2021 4/20/2021

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit I ConlfMtw Wilelj
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CERTtFlCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fPPATAl COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA). requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.201Q, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated Drst-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in .a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirenr^ents. as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
,1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action '
7. Location.of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation informaifon is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-262 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive CompensaUon Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification;
The below named-Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

4/20/2021

Dili ■

OMuSlonM 6t:

Executive Director

—

Exhibit J - Certiricallon Reflarding Ihe Federal Funding Contractor Irriilab^ '■ ■
Accountability And Tronaparency Ad (FFATA) Complianco 4/20/2021
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FORMA

As (he Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

61S33S283
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants. sub*grants. and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) S25.000.000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements? .

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If (he answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does (he public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(d) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUOHHVll07tl
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OHMS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. -U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data" means all confidential informalion
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case • Records.. Protected Health information and
Personally Identifiable Informalion.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information ovmed or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Departrneni of Health and

■ Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Informalion (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI). and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incideni" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy.
. which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, (he unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics-without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Losiopdat# 10/09/18 e>di«biiK CoolfBclorIniiiots
OHHS Inlormaliori
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure. modiHcation or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or 'PI') means Information which can be used to distinguish
or (race an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, rrtother's maiden
name.'etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Pad 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is

developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to .all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.,

3. If DHHS notifies (he Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound-by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI " in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Daia between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHMS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email lo transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sen! to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such inforn3alion.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmuted via a Web site."

5. File Hosling Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerliried ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices lo transmit
Confidential Dala said devices musi be encrypted and password-protected.

6. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Dala via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communicallon to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle.(i.e. Confidential Data wilfbe deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User is lransmittir>g Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Conlracl. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected, in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implerrientation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

. 2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security moniloring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact Slate of NH systems
and/or Deparlmenl confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, antl-spyware, and anii-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastnjcture.

B. Disposition

1. If the Conlraclor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its'
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any Stale of New Harripshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing Stale of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sariitlzalion, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. 8.
Department of Commerce, The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
lime of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to.
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards-for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Conlraclor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using.a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of,the termination of this
Contract; Conlraclor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect' Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit; or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Hs End
Users in support of protecting Department conndentiai information.

6. If the Contractor will be subcontracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that' defines specific security
expectations, and monitoririg compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notificalion requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the-Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for malritaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement.- The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagemeni between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In (he event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agerKies. including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a).- DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R- Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable' health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the -Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doil/vendoryindex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of anysecurity breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New

, Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire networi<.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidenliai Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information al all times..

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Inforrnalion only if encrvpted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physlcaiiy and technoiogicaliy secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as weii as nomduty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times wtten In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidenijal Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as deterrhined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight arxJ compliar^ce of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance" with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HlPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must-further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally ideniifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to.determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to lncidenis;-3nd
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5. Determine whether Breach r>otirication is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and- cbntenis from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicat>le, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

OHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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